
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a financial agreement between the State of Wisconsin and the City of Stoughton for costs 


for the construction of roundabouts on US Highway 51 at Hoel/Silverado, STH 138 and Roby Road 


scheduled to be constructed in 2021. 
 
 


Committee Action: 


 


Finance Committee approved 5-0 on November 26, 2019 
 
 


Fiscal Impact: 


 


$ 45,500  


 
File Number: 


 
R-191-2019 


 
Date Introduced 


 
November 26, 2019 


 
WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) is scheduled to construct roundabouts 


on US Highway 51 at the intersections of Hoel/Silverado, STH 138, and Roby Road, in 2021 (the 


“Project”); and 


 


WHEREAS, the City has previously provided input on certain design elements as part of R-101-2017 


that will be funded by the City; and  


 


WHEREAS, a financial agreement has been prepared for the City’s contribution to the project; and 


 


WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the City contribution for this project is $45,500; and 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the State/Municipal Financial 


Agreement For A State –Let Highway Project (USH 51), is hereby approved, Mayor Swadley is authorized 


and directed to execute such Agreement on behalf of the City, and the City Finance Director is authorized 


to pay the Wisconsin Department of Transportation pursuant to such Agreement. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-- 2019 Resolution approving agreement with DOT - Roundabouts Project.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  November 14, 2019 


 


To:  Finance Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Finance Committee Agenda Item – Agreement with State DOT for USH 51 


Roundabouts at Hoel/Silverado, STH 138 and Roby Road 


 


The Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) is scheduled to construct roundabouts on 


US Highway 51 at the intersections of Hoel/Silverado, STH 138, and Roby Road, in 2021.  In 


2017, as part of R-101-2017, the City provide design guidance to the DOT about certain project 


upgrades, such as colored concrete, that would be funded by the City.  The DOT has provided an 


Agreement that outlines the City’s contribution to the project.  The estimated cost for the City 


funded items as part of the DOT project is $45,500. 


 


The agreement is recommended for approval. 


 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    


     


 
    


 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance Committee 11-14-19 - DOT RAB Agreement.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


Central File: Planning\Project Agreement\Dane County                Page 1 of 5         ID 5845-01-06/76/08/78  
 


 


 


 
 


STATE / MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL 
AGREEMENT FOR A STATE- LET 


HIGHWAY PROJECT 
 
 


 
Date: March 26, 2019 
I.D.:5845-01-06/22/44/76, 5845-01-08/23/78  
Road Name: USH 51 
Title: Stoughton - Madison 
Limits: STH 138 To Silverado Dr/ Hoel Ave and 
Roby Road Intersection  
County: Dane 
Roadway Length: 0.20 mi/ 0.36 mi 


 
 


The signatory City of Stoughton, hereinafter called the Municipality, through its undersigned duly authorized 
officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the 
State, to initiate and affect the highway or street improvement hereinafter described. 


The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State is provided by Section 86.25(1), (2), 
and (3) of the Statutes. 


 
 


NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY: 


Existing Facility – Both locations are experiencing significant traffic growth as the City of Stoughton expands to 
the west. Traffic volumes have increased and are projected to continue increasing to a level that causes the 
intersections of USH 51 and STH 138, USH 51 and Hoel Avenue/Silverado Drive, and USH 51 and Roby Road to 
experience poor level of service and increase crash occurrence. The existing intersections are not sufficient to 
accommodate this growth. A temporary traffic signal was installed at USH 51 and STH 138 in 2016 to improve 
operations at that intersection until the ultimate improvement could be constructed. The improvement will also 
eliminate the skew at the USH 51 and STH 138 Intersection.  


Proposed Improvement – The three intersections of USH 51and STH 138, USH 51 and Silverado/Hoel Avenue, 
and USH 51 and Roby Road will be reconstructed as roundabouts.  
 
The typical section through the roundabout has a 12-foot concrete truck apron, either one 20’ driving lane or an 
inside 12-foot driving lane and a 20-foot outside driving lane, 18-inch curb and gutter between the central island 
and truck apron, 36-inch mountable curb and gutter between the truck apron and driving lanes and 30-inch curb 
and gutter on the outside of the driving lanes, a 5-foot terrace and a 10-foot multi-use path. 
 
The typical section for the roundabout approaches has a variable median width, a 12-foot inside driving lane with a 
12-foot typical (variable) outside driving lane, 30-inch curb and gutter, a 5-foot terrace and a 10-foot multi-use 
path. North of the STH 138 roundabout some areas have a 5-foot asphalt outside shoulder with a 5-foot base 
aggregate dense shoulder and an inside shoulder of 3-foot and a 3-foot asphalt inside shoulder with a 3-foot base 
aggregate dense shoulder. 


Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project 
completely which will be undertaken independently by the municipality: Installing and adjusting water and 
sanitary sewer systems including manhole and valve adjustments, and colored concrete. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
  
   
 







 


Central File: Planning\Project Agreement\Dane County                Page 2 of 5         ID 5845-01-06/76/08/78  
 


 
 


TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF COSTS - STH 138 to Silverado Dr/ Hoel Ave (5845-01-06/ 22/ 44/ 76)
Total Federal/State Municipal 


Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %


Preliminary Engineering: 5845-01-06
Plan Development 457,590$             457,590$             100% -$             


Real Estate Acquisition:
Acquisition: 5845-01-22 120,000$             120,000$             100%
Compensable Utilities: 5845-01-44 37,000$               37,000$               100% -$             


1Construction: 5845-01-76
Roadway 4,694,500$          4,694,500$          100% -$             
Non-Participating Municipal Items -$             
     ° Coloring Concrete 21,800$                21,800$       100%


    ° Utility Adjustments 5,000$                  5,000$         100%


Total Cost Distribution 5,335,890$          5,309,090$          26,800$       
1.  Estimates include construction engineering.  


 
 
 


TABLE 2: SUMMARY OF COSTS - Roby Road (5845-01-08/ 23/ 78)
Total Federal/State Municipal 


Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %


Preliminary Engineering: 5845-01-08
Plan Development 250,000$             250,000$             100% -$             


Real Estate Acquisition:
Acquisition: 5845-01-23 175,000$             175,000$             100%
Compensable Utilities -$                     -$             


1Construction: 5845-01-78
Roadway 1,895,400$          1,895,400$          100% -$             
Non-Participating Municipal Items -$             
     ° Coloring Concrete 13,700$                13,700$       100%


    ° Utility Adjustments 5,000$                  5,000$         100%


Total Cost Distribution 2,339,100$          2,320,400$          18,700$       
1.  Estimates include construction engineering.  


 
 
 
 
 







 


Central File: Planning\Project Agreement\Dane County                Page 3 of 5         ID 5845-01-06/76/08/78  
 


This request shall constitute agreement between the Municipality and the State; is subject to the terms and 
conditions that follow (pages 3 – 5); is made by the undersigned under proper authority to make such request for 
the designated Municipality, upon signature by the State, upon fully executed signature of applicable State 
Municipal Maintenance Agreement and delivery to the Municipality. The initiation and accomplishment of the 
improvement will be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations. No term or provision of neither the 
State/Municipal Financial Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally but 
only by an instrument in writing executed by both parties to the State/Municipal Financial Agreement.  


Signed for and in behalf of the City of Stoughton (please sign in blue ink) 
 
Name (print)      Title       
 
 
Signature          Date 
 
Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink) 
 
Name         Title  
 
 
Signature                          Date 
 
 


TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 


1. The Municipality shall pay to the State all costs incurred by the State in connection with the improvement which 
exceeds federal/state financing commitments or are ineligible for federal/state financing. Local participation 
shall be limited to the items and percentages set forth in the Summary of Costs table, which shows Municipal 
funding participation. In order to guarantee the Municipality’s foregoing agreements to pay the State, the 
Municipality, through its above duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set off 
and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the State from General Transportation 
Aids or any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the Municipality. 


2. Funding of each project phase is subject to inclusion in an approved program and per the State’s Facility 
Development Manual (FDM) standards.  Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financing will be limited 
to participation in the costs of the following items as specified in the Summary of Costs: 


(a)  Design engineering and state review services. 


(b)  Real Estate necessitated for the improvement. 


(c)  Compensable utility adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project. 


(d)  The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards, excluding the cost of 
parking areas. 


(e)  Storm sewer mains, culverts, laterals, manholes, inlets, catch basins, and connections for surface water 
drainage of the improvement; including replacement and/or adjustments of existing storm sewer manhole 
covers and inlet grates as needed. 


(f)  Construction engineering incidental to inspection and supervision of actual construction work, except for 
inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main. 


(g)  Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, including detour routes. 


(h)  Replacement of existing sidewalks necessitated by construction and construction of new sidewalk at the 
roundabout at the time of construction.  







 


Central File: Planning\Project Agreement\Dane County                Page 4 of 5         ID 5845-01-06/76/08/78  
 


(i)  Replacement of existing driveways, in kind, necessitated by the project. 


(j)  New installations or alteration resulting from roadway construction of standard State street lighting and 
traffic signals or devices. Alteration may include salvaging and replacement of existing components. 


3.  Work necessary to complete the improvement to be financed entirely by the Municipality or other utility or 
facility owner includes the following items: 


(a)  New installations of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electric, telephone, 
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utilities. 


(b)  New installation or alteration of signs not necessary for the safe and efficient flow of traffic. 


(c)  Roadway and bridge width in excess of standards. 


(d)  Construction inspection, staking, and material testing and acceptance for construction of sanitary 
sewer and water main. 


(e)  Provide complete plans, specifications, and estimates for sanitary sewer and water main work.  The 
Municipality assumes full responsibility for the design, installation, inspection, testing, and operation of 
the sanitary sewer and water system.  This relieves the State and all of its employees from the liability for 
all suits, actions, or claims resulting from the sanitary sewer and water system construction.  


(f)  Parking lane costs.  


(g)  Coordinate, clean up, and fund any hazardous materials encountered for city utility construction. All 
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed in accordance to state and federal regulations.  


4.  As the work progresses, the Municipality will be billed for work completed which is not chargeable to 
federal/state funds. Upon completion of the project, a final audit will be made to determine the final division of 
costs. 


5.  If the Municipality should withdraw the project, it shall reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the State 
in behalf of the project. 


6.  The work will be administered by the State and may include items not eligible for federal/state participation. 


7.  The Municipality shall, in cooperation with the State, assist with public relations for the project and 
announcements to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected property owners and the 
community of the nature, extent, and timing of the project and arrangements for handling traffic within and 
around the project.  


8.  Basis for local participation:  


(a)  Design Engineering (5845-01-06/08) 


All design engineering costs necessitated by the street or road construction are 100% eligible for 
Federal/State funding.  Standard street lighting design is a participating item.  Any design costs 
associated with non-participating construction items are the responsibility of the Municipality.  The 
costs of designing a lighting system that consists of decorative street lights and other enhancement items 
are the responsibility of the Municipality. 


(b)  Real Estate Acquisition (5845-01-22/23) 


All real estate acquisitions necessitated by the roadway improvement are 100% eligible for Federal/State 
funding.  Costs not eligible include real estate purchased for parking and excess remnants not associated 
with the roadway project. 


 







 


Central File: Planning\Project Agreement\Dane County                Page 5 of 5         ID 5845-01-06/76/08/78  
 


 


(c)   Roadway Construction (5845-01-76/78) 


i. The Municipality shall pay 100% of the cost of installing or adjusting water and sanitary 
sewer systems including manhole and valve adjustments.  These costs are not eligible for 
Federal/State funding. 
 


ii. The Municipality has elected to color the concrete “porkchop” islands within the project.  The 
Municipality will be 100% responsible for the coloring costs. 


 
Comments and Clarification:  This agreement is an active agreement that may need to be amended as the project 
is designed.  It is understood that these amendments may be needed as some issues have not been fully evaluated 
or resolved.  The purpose of this agreement is to specify the local and state involvement in funding the project.  
A signed agreement is required before the State will prepare or participate in the preparation of detailed designs, 
acquire right-of-way, or participate in construction of a project that merits local involvement. 


 





		08a-R-- 2019 Resolution approving agreement with DOT - Roundabouts Project-updated date and City Hall Address

		08b-Finance Committee 11-14-19 - DOT RAB Agreement - Package






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
To authorize an increase in operating hours for Stoughton Transit and to authorize the Addendum to 


the 2018 Shared Ride Taxi Contract with Running Inc. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance meets December 10, 2019 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
The additional 369 hours should be fully covered by grants and passenger fares. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-192-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
December 10, 2019 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has a contract with Running Inc to operate its taxi service for 2018 and 


2019, and the contract has three one-year renewal options; and 


 


WHEREAS, Running Inc is requesting that the scheduled hours be increased from 11,820 to 12,189 to 


improve service on weekends and during weekday rush-hour times; and 


 


WHEREAS, the 369 additional hours are expected to be fully funded by grants and passenger revenues; and 


 


WHEREAS, the 2020 hourly rate will be $30.46 per Wisconsin Department of Transportation regulations; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, the total cost of the contract before passenger and grant revenues will be $371,276.94; and 


 


WHEREAS, it is projected that the taxi service in 2020 will only cost the city $200 after passenger and 


grant revenues are considered; and 


 


WHEREAS, the 2020 operating budget provides sufficient expenditure authority to cover the additional 


hours; and 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that it approves increasing the 


operating hours from 11,820 to 12,189 starting in 2020; and 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that city staff are 


authorize to execute the attached Addendum to the 2018 Shared Ride Taxi Contract with Running Inc. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Date:          November 25, 2019 


 


To:             Finance Committee 


 


From:         Ryan Wiesen 


                  Assistant Director of Finance 


 


Subject:     Stoughton Transit Increased Hours and Contract Renewal 


 


The contract signed with Running Inc to operate Stoughton Transit has a two-year term from 2018 to 


2019. The contract also has three one-year renewal extensions.  


 


The attached addendum was drafted by Running Inc to accept the first one-year renewal for 2020. It is 


also requesting permission to increase the scheduled annual hours from 11,280 to 12,189. The additional 


hours will be used to improve response times for weekend service and weekday rush-hours. 


 


The contract rate will be $30.46, which is determine by taking the prior year rate and adding an inflation 


factor per Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WiDOT) regulations.  


 


The extra hours will have a cost of $11,240, but the cost is expected to be funded entirely by passenger 


fares and the WiDOT operating grant. Sufficient expenditure authority in the 2020 budget also exists for 


the additional hours. 


 


The attached resolution is drafted to approve the additional 369 hours and to authorize the contract 


renewal addendum.  



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





ADDENDUM to the 2018 Shared Ride Taxi Contract Between: 


the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
and 


Running Inc. 
 


 


1. This addendum extends the term of the contract dated January 1, 2018 for an 


additional year ending December 31, 2020. 


 


2. Both parties agree to abide by the terms and conditions established in the request for 


proposal issued by the City of Stoughton in the fall of 2017, and the proposal 


submitted by Running Inc. in response thereof. 


 


3. The contract may be continued for TWO additional years through December 31, 2022 


by mutual agreement of the parties each year. 


 


4. For 2020, the parties have agreed that the City is to be billed at $30.46 per vehicle 


service hour and the total number of billed vehicle service hours are not to exceed 


12,189 hours, and the total contract amount will not exceed $371,276.94. 


 


5. The added hours are intended to address patron concerns regarding the timeliness of 


service. 104 hours will be allocated to improve response time of weekend service, and 


265 hours will be allocated to improve response time of weekday rush-hour service. 


 


6. Federal certifications and assurances which were executed in September 2019 are 


incorporated by reference into this addendum. 


 


 


RUNNING INC. CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________ 
Karl Schulte, General Manager Jamin Friedl, Director of Finance 
 
Date __________________________ Date _______________________ 


 





		09a-Resolution 2019 Contract Amendment

		09b-Taxi Memo

		09c-2020 Taxi Amendment Draft






City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 


 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to engage Baker Tilly for Utilities audit services 


for the years ending 2019, 2020 and 2021. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 5-0 on November 26, 2019.  


  
Fiscal Impact:  2019 - $18,800; 2020 - $19,200; 2021 - $19,700 


    
File Number: 


 
R-193-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
December 10, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Utilities is required to have an annual financial audit conducted by 


an independent accounting firm; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Utilities has historically engaged with Baker Tilly to conduct the 


annual financial audits in three (3) year increments; and 


 


WHEREAS, the 2019 fiscal impact remains unchanged from the 2018 fiscal impact; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee recommends authorizing and directing the 


proper City official(s) to engage Baker Tilly for Utilities audit services for the years ending 2019, 2020 


and 2021. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the 


proper city official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to engage Baker Tilly for Utilities audit services 


for the years ending 2019, 2020 and 2021. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 







 


 


 


 
Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 
Ten Terrace Ct 
PO Box 7398 
Madison, WI 53707-7398 
 
T: +1 (608) 249 6622 
F: +1 (608) 249 8532 
 
bakertilly.com 


Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members 
of which are separate and independent legal entities. © 2018 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


November 20, 2019 
 
 
 
Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
600 South Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


Dear Mrs. Weiss: 


Thank you for using Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP ("Baker Tilly" or "we" or "our") as your auditors. 


The purpose of this letter (the "Engagement Letter") is to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives 
of our engagement and the nature of the services we will provide as independent accountants of Stoughton 
Utilities ("you" or "your").  


Service and Related Report 


We will audit the financial statements of Stoughton Utilities as of and for the years ended December 31, 2019, 
2020 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements. Upon completion of our audit, we will provide 
Stoughton Utilities with our audit report on the financial statements and supplemental information referred to 
below. If, for any reasons caused by or relating to the affairs or management of Stoughton Utilities, we are 
unable to complete the audit or are unable to or have not formed an opinion, or if we determine in our 
professional judgment the circumstances necessitate, we may withdraw and decline to issue a report as a result 
of this engagement. 


The following supplementary information accompanying the financial statements will also be subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and our auditor's report 
will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 


 Utility Plant Activity Schedules 


 Operating Revenues and Expenses Schedules 


 Rate of Return - Regulatory Basis 







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required 
supplementary information ("RSI"), such as management’s discussion and analysis, to supplement Stoughton 
Utilities' financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our 
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Stoughton Utilities' RSI in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries 
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's response to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles 
and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 


 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 


 Pension - related schedules 


Our Responsibilities and Limitations 


The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We will 
be responsible for performing that audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America ("GAAS"). These standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
whether caused by error or fraud. The audit will include examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit does 
not relieve management and the audit committee or equivalent group charged with governance of their 
responsibilities.  


The audit will include obtaining an understanding of Stoughton Utilities and its environment, including internal 
controls, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to determine the 
nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal 
controls or to identify deficiencies in internal control. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and the audit committee or equivalent group charged with governance internal control matters 
that are required to be communicated under professional standards.  


We will design our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of detecting misstatements due to 
errors or fraud that would have a material effect on the financial statements as well as other illegal acts having a 
direct and material effect on financial statement amounts. An audit is not designed to detect error or fraud that 
is immaterial to the financial statements. Our audit will not include a detailed audit of transactions, such as 
would be necessary to disclose errors or fraud that did not cause a material misstatement of the financial 
statements. It is important to recognize that there are inherent limitations in the auditing process. Audits are 
based on the concept of selective testing of the data underlying the financial statements, which involves 
judgment regarding the areas to be tested and the nature, timing, extent and results of the tests to be 
performed. Our audit is not a guarantee of the accuracy of the financial statements and, therefore, is subject to 
the limitation that material errors or fraud or other illegal acts having a direct and material financial statement 
impact, if they exist, may not be detected. Because of the characteristics of fraud, particularly those involving 
concealment through collusion, falsified documentation and management's ability to override controls, an audit 
designed and executed in accordance with GAAS may not detect a material fraud.  







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


Further, while effective internal control reduces the likelihood that errors, fraud or other illegal acts will occur 
and remain undetected, it does not eliminate that possibility. For these reasons, we cannot ensure that errors, 
fraud or other illegal acts, if present, will be detected. However, we will communicate to you, as appropriate, any 
such matters that we identify during our audit.   


We are also responsible for determining that the audit committee or equivalent group charged with governance 
is informed about certain other matters related to the conduct of the audit, including (i) our responsibility under 
GAAS, (ii) an overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, and (iii) significant findings from the audit, 
which include (a) our views about the qualitative aspects of your significant accounting practices, accounting 
estimates, and financial statement disclosures; (b) difficulties encountered in performing the audit; (c) 
uncorrected misstatements and material corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of 
management as a result of auditing procedures; and (d) other significant and relevant findings or issues (e.g., 
any disagreements with management about matters that could be significant to your financial statements or our 
report thereon, consultations with other independent accountants, issues discussed prior to our retention as 
independent auditors, fraud and illegal acts, and all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified 
during the audit). Lastly, we are responsible for ensuring that the audit committee or equivalent group charged 
with governance receives copies of certain written communications between us and management including 
written communications on accounting, auditing, internal controls or operational matters and representations 
that we are requesting from management. 


The audit will not be planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance of any specific third party or with respect 
to any specific transaction. Therefore, items of possible interest to a third party will not be specifically addressed 
and matters may exist that would be addressed differently by a third party, possibly in connection with a specific 
transaction. 


Management's Responsibilities 


Stoughton Utilities' management is responsible for the financial statements referred to above. In this regard, 
management is responsible for establishing policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records and effective internal controls over financial reporting, the selection and 
application of accounting principles, the authorization of receipts and disbursements, the safeguarding of 
assets, the proper recording of transactions in the accounting records, and for reporting financial information in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP").  


Management is also responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and 
detect fraud, and for informing us in the management representation letter (i) about all known or suspected 
fraud affecting Stoughton Utilities involving: (a) management, (b) employees who have significant roles in 
internal control over financial reporting, and (c) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material 
effect on the financial statements; and (ii) of its knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting Stoughton Utilities received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, grantors, 
regulators, or others.   


You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with GAAP. You agree 
to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we 
have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements 
with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities 
include acknowledging to us in the representation letter that (a) you are responsible for presentation of the 
supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (b) that you believe the supplementary information, 
including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (c) that the methods of 
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, 
the reasons for such changes); and (d) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations 
underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information. 







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


Management is responsible for (i) adjusting the  financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
affirming to us in a management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period under audit are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the  financial statements taken as a whole, and (ii) notifying us of all 
material weaknesses, including other significant deficiencies, in the design or operation of your internal control 
over financial reporting that are reasonably likely to adversely affect your ability to record, process, summarize 
and report external financial data reliably in accordance with GAAP. Management is also responsible for 
identifying and ensuring that Stoughton Utilities complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 
activities.  


As part of management’s responsibility for the financial statements and the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control over financial reporting, management is responsible for making available to us, on a timely 
basis, all of your original accounting records and related information and for the completeness and accuracy of 
that information and your personnel to whom we may direct inquiries. As required by GAAS, we will make 
specific inquiries of management and others about the representations embodied in the financial statements 
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. GAAS also requires that we obtain written 
representations covering audited financial statements from certain members of management. The results of our 
audit tests, the responses to our inquiries, and the written representations, comprise the evidential matter we 
intend to rely upon in forming our opinion on the financial statements. 


Baker Tilly is not a municipal advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act or under Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Act"). Baker Tilly is 
not recommending an action to Stoughton Utilities; is not acting as an advisor to you and does not owe a 
fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of the Act to you with respect to the information and material contained in 
the deliverables issued under this engagement. You should discuss any information and material contained in 
the deliverables with any and all internal and external advisors and experts that you deem appropriate before 
acting on this information or material. 


Nonattest Services 


Prior to or as part of our audit engagement, it may be necessary for us to perform certain nonattest services. 
For purposes of this letter, nonattest services include services that Government Auditing Standards refers to as 
nonaudit services.  


Nonattest services that we will be providing are as follows: 


 Financial statement preparation assistance  


 Adjusting journal entries, if needed  


 Preparation of compiled regulatory reports, if requested 
 


None of these nonattest services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards including 
Government Auditing Standards.  


We will not perform any management functions or make management decisions on your behalf with respect to 
any nonattest services we provide. 







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


In connection with our performance of any nonattest services, you agree that you will: 


 Continue to make all management decisions and perform all management functions, including 
approving all journal entries and general ledger classifications when they are submitted to you. 


 Designate an employee with suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience, preferably within senior 
management, to oversee the services we perform. 


 Evaluate the adequacy and results of the nonattest services we perform. 


 Accept responsibility for the results of our nonattest services. 


 Establish and maintain internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities related to the nonattest 
function. 


On a periodic basis, as needed, we will meet with you to discuss your accounting records and the management 
implications of your financial statements. We will notify you, in writing, of any matters that we believe you should 
be aware of and will meet with you upon request. 


In addition to the audit services discussed above if requested, we will compile the Public Service Commission 
Annual Report. See Addendum A attached, which is an integral part of this Engagement Letter. 


Other Documents 


If you intend to reproduce or publish the financial statements in an annual report or other information (excluding 
official statements), and make reference to our firm name in connection therewith, you agree to publish the 
financial statements in their entirety. In addition, you agree to provide us, for our approval and consent, proofs 
before printing and final materials before distribution. 


If you intend to reproduce or publish the financial statements in an official statement, unless we establish a 
separate agreement to be involved in the issuance, any official statements issued by Stoughton Utilities must 
contain a statement that Baker Tilly is not associated with the official statement, which shall read "Baker Tilly 
Virchow Krause, LLP, our independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform and has not performed, since 
the date of its report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in that report. 
Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, has also not performed any procedures relating to this official statement." 


With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements 
published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute 
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider 
the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.  


The documentation for this engagement, including the workpapers, is the property of Baker Tilly and constitutes 
confidential information. We may have a responsibility to retain the documentation for a period of time sufficient 
to satisfy any applicable legal or regulatory requirements for records retention. If we are required by law, 
regulation, or professional standards to make certain documentation available to regulators, Stoughton Utilities 
hereby authorizes us to do so.  







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


Timing and Fees 


Completion of our work is subject to, among other things, (i) appropriate cooperation from Stoughton Utilities' 
personnel, including timely preparation of necessary schedules, (ii) timely responses to our inquiries, and (iii) 
timely communication of all significant accounting and financial reporting matters. When and if for any reason 
Stoughton Utilities is unable to provide such schedules, information, and assistance, Baker Tilly and you will 
mutually revise the fee to reflect additional services, if any, required of us to complete the audit. Delays in the 
issuance of our audit report beyond the date that was originally contemplated may require us to perform 
additional auditing procedures which will likely result in additional fees. 


Revisions to the scope of our work will be communicated to you and may be set forth in the form of an 
"Amendment to Existing Engagement Letter." In addition, if we discover compliance issues that require us to 
perform additional procedures and/or provide assistance with these matters, fees at our standard hourly rates 
apply. 
 


Year Audit 


Financial 
Statement 


Preparation 


PSC Report 
Preparation  
(2 reports)  


(if requested) Totals 
     


2019 $ 17,700  $ 1,000  $ 1,500  $ 20,200  
2020  18,200   1,000   1,500   20,700  
2021  18,700   1,000   1,500   21,200  


Invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. A 
charge of 1.5 percent per month shall be imposed on accounts not paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of our 
statement for services provided. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account 
becomes thirty (30) days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect 
to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon 
written notice of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us 
for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.  


In addition to our professional fees, out-of-pocket expenses for direct engagement support including travel and 
subsistence, production of reports, and other direct engagement expenses will be billed separately at our cost 
and stated separately on our invoices. 


We may use temporary contract staff to perform certain tasks on your engagement and will bill for that time at 
the rate that corresponds to Baker Tilly staff providing a similar level of service. Upon request, we will be happy 
to provide details on training, supervision, and billing arrangements we use in connection with these 
professionals. 


Additionally, we may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use service providers (e.g., to act 
as a specialist or audit an element of the financial statements) in serving your account. We may share 
confidential information about you with these service providers, but are committed to maintaining the 
confidentiality and security of your information.  


Any additional services that may be requested and we agree to provide, may be the subject of a separate 
engagement letter. 







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


We may be required to disclose confidential information to federal, state and international regulatory bodies or a 
court in criminal or other civil litigation. In the event that we receive a request from a third party (including a 
subpoena, summons or discovery demand in litigation) calling for the production of information, we will promptly 
notify Stoughton Utilities, unless otherwise prohibited. In the event we are requested by Stoughton Utilities or 
required by government regulation, subpoena or other legal process to produce our engagement working 
papers or our personnel as witnesses with respect to services rendered to Stoughton Utilities, so long as we are 
not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, we may seek reimbursement for our 
professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and legal expenses, incurred in responding to such a 
request. 


Our fees are based on known circumstances at the time of this Engagement Letter. Should circumstances 
change significantly during the course of this engagement, we will discuss with you the need for any revised 
audit fees. This can result from changes at Stoughton Utilities, such as the turnover of key accounting staff, the 
addition of new funds or significant federal or state programs or changes that affect the amount of audit effort 
from external sources, such as new accounting and auditing standards that become effective that increase the 
scope of our audit procedures. This Engagement Letter currently includes all auditing and accounting standards 
and the current single audit guidance in effect as of the date of this letter.  


We would expect to continue to perform our services under the arrangements discussed above from year to 
year, unless for some reason you or we find that some change is necessary. We will, of course, be happy to 
provide Stoughton Utilities with any other services you may find necessary or desirable. 


Resolution of Disagreements  


In the unlikely event that differences concerning services or fees should arise that are not resolved by mutual 
agreement, both parties agree to attempt in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation administered by the 
American Arbitration Association ("AAA") under its mediation rules for professional accounting and related 
services disputes before resorting to litigation or any other dispute-resolution procedure. Each party shall bear 
their own expenses from mediation.  


If mediation does not settle the dispute or claim, then the parties agree that the dispute or claim shall be settled 
by binding arbitration. The arbitration proceeding shall take place in the city in which the Baker Tilly office 
providing the relevant services is located, unless the parties mutually agree to a different location. The 
proceeding shall be governed by the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act ("FAA") and will proceed in 
accordance with the then current Arbitration Rules for Professional Accounting and Related Disputes of the 
AAA, except that no pre hearing discovery shall be permitted unless specifically authorized by the arbitrator. 
The arbitrator will be selected from AAA, Judicial Arbitration & Mediation Services ("JAMS"), the Center for 
Public Resources or any other internationally or nationally recognized organization mutually agreed upon by the 
parties. Potential arbitrator names will be exchanged within fifteen (15) days of the parties’ agreement to settle 
the dispute or claim by binding arbitration, and arbitration will thereafter proceed expeditiously. The arbitration 
will be conducted before a single arbitrator, experienced in accounting and auditing matters. The arbitrator shall 
have no authority to award non-monetary or equitable relief and will not have the right to award punitive 
damages. The award of the arbitration shall be in writing and shall be accompanied by a well-reasoned opinion. 
The award issued by the arbitrator may be confirmed in a judgment by any federal or state court of competent 
jurisdiction. Each party shall be responsible for their own costs associated with the arbitration, except that the 
costs of the arbitrator shall be equally divided by the parties. The arbitration proceeding and all information 
disclosed during the arbitration shall be maintained as confidential, except as may be required for disclosure to 
professional or regulatory bodies or in a related confidential arbitration. In no event shall a demand for 
arbitration be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim would 
be barred under the applicable statute of limitations. 







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


Our services shall be evaluated solely on our substantial conformance with the terms expressly set forth herein, 
including all applicable professional standards. Any claim of nonconformance must be clearly and convincingly 
shown. 


Limitation on Damages and Indemnification 


The liability (including attorney’s fees and all other costs) of Baker Tilly and its present or former partners, 
principals, agents or employees related to any claim for damages relating to the services performed under this 
Engagement Letter shall not exceed the fees paid to Baker Tilly for the portion of the work to which the claim 
relates, except to the extent finally determined to have resulted from the willful misconduct or fraudulent 
behavior of Baker Tilly relating to such services. This limitation of liability is intended to apply to the full extent 
allowed by law, regardless of the grounds or nature of any claim asserted, including the negligence of either 
party. Additionally, in no event shall either party be liable for any lost profits, lost business opportunity, lost data, 
consequential, special, incidental, exemplary or punitive damages, delays or interruptions arising out of or 
related to this Engagement Letter even if the other party has been advised of the possibility of such damages. 


As Baker Tilly is performing the services solely for your benefit, you will indemnify Baker Tilly, its subsidiaries 
and their present or former partners, principals, employees, officers and agents against all costs, fees, 
expenses, damages and liabilities (including attorney's fees and all defense costs) associated with any 
third-party claim, relating to or arising as a result of the services, or this Engagement Letter.  


Because of the importance of the information that you provide to Baker Tilly with respect to Baker Tilly’s ability 
to perform the services, you hereby release Baker Tilly and its present and former partners, principals, agents 
and employees from any liability, damages, fees, expenses and costs, including attorney's fees, relating to the 
services, that arise from or relate to any information, including representations by management, provided by 
you, its personnel or agents, that is not complete, accurate or current.  


Each party recognizes and agrees that the warranty disclaimers and liability and remedy limitations in this 
Engagement Letter are material bargained for bases of this Engagement Letter and that they have been taken 
into account and reflected in determining the consideration to be given by each party under this Engagement 
Letter and in the decision by each party to enter into this Engagement Letter.  


The terms of this section shall apply regardless of the nature of any claim asserted (including, but not limited to, 
contract, tort or any form of negligence, whether of you, Baker Tilly or others), but these terms shall not apply to 
the extent finally determined to be contrary to the applicable law or regulation. These terms shall also continue 
to apply after any termination of this Engagement Letter.  


You accept and acknowledge that any legal proceedings arising from or in conjunction with the services 
provided under this Engagement Letter must be commenced within twelve (12) months after the performance of 
the services for which the action is brought, without consideration as to the time of discovery of any claim. 


Other Matters 


Neither this Engagement Letter, any claim, nor any rights or licenses granted hereunder may be assigned, 
delegated, or subcontracted by either party without the written consent of the other party. Either party may 
assign and transfer this Engagement Letter to any successor that acquires all or substantially all of the business 
or assets of such party by way of merger, consolidation, other business reorganization, or the sale of interest or 
assets, provided that the party notifies the other party in writing of such assignment and the successor agrees 
in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Engagement Letter.  







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


Our dedication to client service is carried out through our employees who are integral in meeting this objective. 
In recognition of the importance of our employees, it is hereby agreed that Stoughton Utilities will not solicit our 
employees for employment or enter into an independent contractor arrangement with any individual who is or 
was an employee of Baker Tilly for a period of twelve (12) months following the date of the conclusion of this 
engagement. If Stoughton Utilities violates this non-solicitation clause, Stoughton Utilities agrees to pay to 
Baker Tilly a fee equal to the hired person's annual salary at the time of the violation so as to reimburse Baker 
Tilly for the costs of hiring and training a replacement. 


Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is an independent member of Baker Tilly International. 
Baker Tilly International Limited is an English company. Baker Tilly International provides no professional 
services to clients. Each member firm is a separate and independent legal entity and each describes itself as 
such. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP is not Baker Tilly International’s agent and does not have the authority to 
bind Baker Tilly International or act on Baker Tilly International’s behalf. None of Baker Tilly International, Baker 
Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, nor any of the other member firms of Baker Tilly International has any liability for 
each other’s acts or omissions. The name Baker Tilly and its associated logo is used under license from Baker 
Tilly International Limited.  


This Engagement Letter constitutes the entire agreement between the Stoughton Utilities and Baker Tilly 
regarding the services described in this Engagement Letter and supersedes and incorporates all prior or 
contemporaneous representations, understandings or agreements, and may not be modified or amended 
except by an agreement in writing signed between the parties hereto.  


The provisions of this Engagement Letter, which expressly or by implication are intended to survive its 
termination or expiration, will survive and continue to bind both parties. If any provision of this Engagement 
Letter is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable or void, then both parties shall be relieved of all 
obligations arising under such provision, but if the remainder of this Engagement Letter shall not be affected by 
such declaration or finding and is capable of substantial performance, then each provision not so affected shall 
be enforced to the extent permitted by law or applicable professional standards. 


If because of a change in the Stoughton Utilities' status or due to any other reason, any provision in this 
Engagement Letter would be prohibited by, or would impair our independence under laws, regulations or 
published interpretations by governmental bodies, commissions or other regulatory agencies, such provision 
shall, to that extent, be of no further force and effect and this agreement shall consist of the remaining portions. 


This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Wisconsin, 
without giving effect to the provisions relating to conflict of laws. We appreciate the opportunity to be of service 
to you.  







Jill Weiss   
Stoughton Utilities 
 
November 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 


 


If there are any questions regarding this Engagement Letter, please contact Jodi Dobson, the engagement 
partner on this engagement who is responsible for the overall supervision and review of the engagement and 
determining that the engagement has been completed in accordance with professional standards. Jodi Dobson 
is available at 608 240 2469, or at Jodi.Dobson@bakertilly.com.  


Sincerely, 


BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP 
 


 
 
Enclosures 
 
The services and terms as set forth in this Engagement Letter are agreed to by: 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Official's Name 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Official's Signature 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Title 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Date 







 


 


ADDENDUM A 
We will perform the following services: 


1. We will compile, from information you provide, the Public Service Commission Annual Report, including 
the balance sheets of the Stoughton Utilities, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related 
statements of income and retained earnings for the years then ended and the supplemental schedules as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2019. Upon completion of the Public Service Commission 
Annual Report, we will provide you with our accountants’ compilation report. If for any reason caused by 
or relating to affairs or management of Stoughton Utilities, we are unable to complete the compilation or if 
we determine in our professional judgment the circumstances necessitate, we may withdraw and decline 
to submit the Public Service Commission Annual Report to you as a result of this engagement. 


Our report on the Public Service Commission Annual Report of Stoughton Utilities is presently expected 
to read as follows: 


Management is responsible for the balance sheets of the utility name, an enterprise fund of the 
Stoughton Utilities, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of income and 
retained earnings for the years then ended and the supplemental schedules as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2019 included in the accompany prescribed form. We have performed a 
compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards of Accounting and Review 
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. We did not audit or review the financial statements included in the 
accompanying prescribed form, nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the 
accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these financial statements 
included in the prescribed form. 


These financial statements included in the accompanying prescribed form are presented in 
accordance with the requirements of the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and are not 
intended to be a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  


This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than this specified party. 


Our Responsibilities and Limitations 


We will be responsible for performing the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The 
objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the form of financial 
statements. We will utilize information that is the representation of management without undertaking to obtain or 
provide any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements 
in order for the statements to be in conformity with GAAP.  


Our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or other illegal acts that may exist and, 
because of the limited nature of our work, detection is highly unlikely. However, we will inform the appropriate 
level of management of any material errors, and of any evidence that fraud may have occurred. In addition, we 
will report to you any evidence or information that comes to our attention during the performance of our 
compilation procedures regarding illegal acts that may have occurred, unless they are clearly inconsequential. 
We have no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal control as part of this 
Engagement Letter. 







 


 


Management's Responsibilities 


Stoughton Utilities' management is responsible for the financial statements referred to above. In this regard, 
management is responsible for (i) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements included in 
the form prescribed by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, (ii) designing, implementing, and 
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (iii) 
preventing and detecting fraud, (iv) identifying and ensuring that you comply with the laws and regulations 
applicable to its activities, and (v) making all financial records and related information available to us. 
Management also is responsible for identifying and ensuring that you comply with the laws and regulations 
applicable to its activities.  


Management is responsible for providing us with the information necessary for the compilation of the financial 
statements and the completeness and the accuracy of that information and for making your personnel available 
to whom we may direct inquiries regarding the compilation. We may make specific inquiries of management 
and others about the representations embodied in the financial statements.  





		10a-DRAFT Resolution - Audit Engagement Letter

		10b - Audit Engagement Letter






City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 


 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to utilize excess funds in the 2019 Capital Outlay 


Budget not to exceed $2,500 to cover deficiencies in the 2019 Body Camera Replacement budget. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommends approval  5-0 on November 26, 2019. 


  
2019 Fiscal Impact:  $2,500 


    
File Number: 


 
R - - 2019 


 
Date Introduced: December 10, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Police Department currently has the following project budgets 


approved for 2019: 


Radio Programming   $  5,000 


Body Camera Replacement  $  4,400 


Camera Interface   $  5,000 


Total     $14,400 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Police Department has deemed it necessary to combine these project 


budgets to replace eight (8) body cameras; and 


 


WHEREAS, the total cost of these replacements is estimated to be $16,023; and 


 


WHEREAS, the combined budget for the aforementioned projects is not sufficient to cover the entire 


cost of replacing all eight (8) body cameras; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton currently has sufficient funds in the Capital Outlay Fund resulting 


from 2019 projects coming in under budget to fund this deficiency; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee recommends combining the aforementioned 


project budgets and authorizes excess Capital Outlay funds not to exceed $2,500 to complete the body 


camera replacement. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the 


proper city official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to combine the aforementioned project budgets 


and utilize excess Capital Outlay funds not to exceed $2,500 to complete the body camera replacement. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 








City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 


 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into a new Medical Director Agreement 


between the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (“City”) and Southern Wisconsin Emergency Associates 


(“SWEA”) 


 
 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee meets December 10, 2019  


  
Fiscal Impact:  $10,000  


 


 
   
File Number: 


 
R-195-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
December 10, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, SWEA employs emergency physicians; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City wishes to terminate the existing Medical Director Agreement with SWEA; and  


 


WHEREAS, the City wishes to re-engage SWEA to provide one of its emergency physician employees 


to serve as the Stoughton Area Emergency Medical Service’s Medical Director to fill the current and 


future openings in the position under a new Agreement; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee recommends the Common Council of the City 


of Stoughton authorize and direct the proper City official(s) to enter into a new Medical Director 


Agreement between the City and SWEA. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the 


proper city official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to terminate the existing Medical Director 


Agreement and enter into a new Medical Director Agreement between the City and SWEA. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 







1 
 


MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT 


 


This Medical Director Agreement (“Agreement”) made this ___ day of ________, 2019 (“Effective 
Date”) by and between the City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (“City”), and Southern 
Wisconsin Emergency Associates, (“SWEA”). 


 


RECITALS 
 


WHEREAS, SWEA employs emergency physicians; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to engage SWEA to provide, and SWEA wishes to provide to 


the City, one of its emergency physician employees to serve as the Stoughton Area Emergency 
Medical Service’s medical director (“Medical Director”) to fill the current and future openings in 
the position. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt and sufficiency of which 


is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 


Agreement 
 
1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement as if 


fully set forth in this Section 1. 
 
2. Nomination of Medical Director. Upon an opening in the position of Medical 


Director, the parties shall comply with the process for nominating the Medical Director as set 
forth in this Section. 


  
(a) Nomination. SWEA shall submit in writing to the City the physician employee it 


wishes to designate as the Medical Director (“Nomination”). The Nomination shall include the 
name of the employee physician, his or her Wisconsin Medical License Number, his or her 
curriculum vitae, and any other information reasonably requested by the City. 


 
(b) Acceptance or Rejection of Nomination. Within fourteen (14) days of receipt the 


Nomination, the City shall notify SWEA in writing of whether it accepts or rejects the Nomination. 
If the City rejects the Nomination, then SWEA shall submit, within five (5) days of receipt of the 
City’s rejection, a second Nomination. This process shall continue until the City accepts a 
Nomination or until the City terminates this Agreement pursuant to subsection (c) of this Section. 
If the City does not timely accept or reject a Nomination, then the City is deemed to have rejected 
the Nomination. 


 


(c) Right to Terminate. In the event that the City rejects the second Nomination, the 
City may, in its sole discretion (a) terminate this Agreement, or (b) continue the Nomination 
process as set forth in this Section. If the City elects to continue the Nomination process, it retains 
the right to terminate the Agreement after subsequent Nominations. 







2 
 


3. Qualifications and Responsibilities. SWEA shall ensure that the Medical Director 
has all of the qualifications to serve as Medical Director including the qualifications identified in 
Wis. Admin. Code Chapter DHS 110.49(1), as amended from time to time, for the duration of the 
Medical Director’s service. Wis. Admin. Code Chapter DHS 110.49 is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
Additionally, SWEA shall ensure that the Medical Director fulfills the responsibilities identified on 
Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein, which the City may amend from time to time 
and shall provide notice to SWEA and the Medical Director of such amendment. 


 
4. Compensation. The City shall pay SWEA Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) 


(“Payment”) annually for the duration of this Agreement, and for partial years, the applicable 
proration of the Payment. The City shall pay the Payment in equal quarterly installments of Two 
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) to SWEA subject to a proration for partial years if 
applicable. 


 


5. Representations and Warranties. SWEA represents and warrants that: 
 
(a) the Medical Director is licensed by the State of Wisconsin as a physician and 


satisfies all of the qualifications of a medical director under Wisconsin law; 
 


(b) the Medical Director has never had his or her license or right to practice medicine 
in Wisconsin, or any other state, or clinical at any hospital, health care facility, suspended, 
revoked or limited in any way nor has said license been surrendered under threat of suspension, 
revocation or limitation; 


 


(c) the Medical Director is not currently, and has not been, suspended from 
participation in, or subject to any criminal or civil sanction, fine, or penalty by any private or public 
health insurance program including Medicare, Medicaid or any other federal or state health 
insurance plan; and 


 


(d) there are no actions, suits, proceedings, investigations, administrative or judicial, 
pending or threatened against or affecting the Medical Director, which involve the possibility of 
the Medical Director’s license being revoked, limited or suspended. 


 
6. Compliance with Laws. SWEA shall, and shall ensure, that the Medical Director 


complies with all applicable state federal and local laws, ordinances and regulations, including 
without limitation the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, public law 
104-191.  


 
7. Policy on Confidential Patient information. SWEA shall require the Medical 


Director to sign the Stoughton Area Emergency Medical Service Policy on Confidentiality and 
Dissemination of Patient Information and Staff Member Verification attached hereto as Exhibit C 
prior to beginning their service as Medical Director. 


 
8. Exclusivity. The parties acknowledge that SWEA and the Medical Director not 


required to provide services exclusively to the City during the term of this Agreement. 







3 
 


9. Conflict of Interest. SWEA represents and warrants that neither the Mayor of the 
City, nor any City Alder, nor any other city official holds a direct or indirect interest in this 
Agreement. SWEA shall notify the City in writing should any City official become directly or 
indirectly interested in this Agreement.  SWEA represents and warrants that as of the Effective 
Date it has not given or donated or promised to give or donate, either directly or indirectly, to 
any official or employee of the City any sum of money or any other thing of value for aid and 
assistance in obtaining this Agreement. 


 
10. Responsibilities of the City. The City shall provide the Medical Director with, to 


the extent necessary for the Medical Director to fulfil his or her responsibilities, (a) access to all 
computerized medical records and system operations, (b) administrative support, and (c) 
necessary medications and equipment for patients. Upon written request by SWEA and subject 
to the City’s written approval, the City may provide financial and nonfinancial support for 
research and education relating to prehospital emergency care conducted by the Medical 
Director. 


 


11. Insurance. SWEA shall, at its own expense, maintain for the duration of this 
Agreement comprehensive professional and general liability insurance of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) aggregate for 
errors and omissions damages that covers the Medical Director. SWEA shall name the City as an 
additional insured on such policy. SWEA shall provide the City with a Certificate of Insurance 
within ten (10) days of execution of this Agreement and at any subsequent time upon the City’s 
request. 


 


12. Indemnification. SWEA shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, its 
officials, representatives, agents and employees from any and all losses, damages, expenses, 
costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), liabilities, claims, or demands whatsoever arising 
from or in connection with (a) SWEA’s breach of this Agreement, (b) personal injuries, death, or 
property damage resulting from, or any way connected with, or alleged to have arisen from, the 
act, omission or negligence of the Medical Director, (c) Medical Director’s failure, or alleged 
failure, to comply with applicable law, ordinances and regulations. 


 


13. Unavailability of Medical Director. If the Medical Director is unavailable, for 
example if he or she is on vacation, for one (1) day or longer, SWEA shall designate one of its 
employees that is qualified to serve as Medical Director as provided under this Agreement to 
temporarily serve as Medical Director for the duration of the such unavailability. 


 


14. Independent Contractor. The parties acknowledge that SWEA is an independent 
contractor and the position of Medical Director is not an employee or agent of the City. The 
parties acknowledge that SWEA and Medical Director are not entitled to any City employment 
benefits or Worker’s Compensation benefits. The parties acknowledge that the City will not 
withhold taxes, social security or unemployment insurance or any other withholding pursuant to 
any law or requirement of any governing body covering City employees in connection with this 
Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that all such income tax, unemployment 
insurance, social security are the sole responsibility of SWEA and the Medical Director. The 







4 
 


parties acknowledge and agree that SWEA and the Medical Director do not have the authority to 
act for the City or to bind the City in any respect, or to incur any debts or liabilities in the name 
of or on behalf of the City. 


 


15. Licensing Fees. SWEA acknowledges and agrees that the City is not responsible for 
payment of the Medical Director’s licensing fees, professional dues, publications, subscriptions 
and related professional expenses with the exception of those professional dues and 
subscriptions afforded the personnel of the Stoughton Area EMS. 


 


16. Billing Functions. The City shall have the exclusive rights to bill, collect and retain 
all fees for medical services provided by the Medical Director in connection with this Agreement. 
The City shall determine professional fees. The City may, at its discretion, assign or delegate these 
rights to an affiliate or entity under contract with the City. 


 


17. Term of Agreement. The initial term of this agreement shall be one (1) year 
beginning on the Effective Date. This Agreement shall automatically renew for successive one (1) 
year terms. 


 


18.  Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90) days 
prior written notice to the other party, unless, a party breaches this Agreement and such default 
continues for thirty (30) days following written notice thereof, in which case the non-defaulting 
party may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to the defaulting 
party. 


 


19. Change of Medical Director.  If one or more of the following events occurs, and 
upon the City’s written request, SWEA shall remove the Medical Director from serving as Medical 
Director:  


 
(a) the Medical Director’s license to practice medicine in Wisconsin is suspended, 


revoked or limited, or if the Medical Director is a party to an action, suit, proceeding, 
investigation, administrative or judicial, which involve the possibility of the Medical Director’s 
license being revoked, suspended or limited.  


 
(b) the loss or suspension of the Medical Director’s federal or state registrations to 


prescribe and dispense controlled substances. 
 


(c) the conviction of the Medical Director, in any jurisdiction, of a crime or felony. 
 


(d) SWEA breaches Section 3 or 5 of this Agreement. 
 


(e) the Medical Director is excluded from participation in any federally funded 
healthcare program including Medicare or Medicaid as of the effective date of exclusion. 


 


(f) the City determines in its sole discretion that the Medical Director is not qualified 







5 
 


under state law to serve as Medical Director or the Medical Director is not fulfilling the 
responsibilities described on Exhibit B. 
 


Upon removal of the Medical Director pursuant to this Section, the parties shall follow 
the Nomination process described in Section 2 of this Agreement to fill the opening in the Medical 
Director position. 


 
20. Governing Laws and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted 


under the laws of the State of Wisconsin. Venue of any action initiated by either party shall be in 
Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
21. Severability. In the event that any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement 


shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, these one or more provisions shall not 
affect any other provision and the Agreement shall be construed as though it had not contained 
the invalid or unenforceable provision (s). 


 
22. Assignment. SWEA shall not assign, or transfer any interest in this Agreement 


without the prior written consent of the City.  
 
23. Non waiver. No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by 


the written consent of the City.  Forbearance or indulgence by the City in any regard whatsoever 
shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by SWEA, and, until 
complete performance by SWEA of said covenant or condition, the City may invoke any remedy 
available to it under this Agreement or by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence.  
No express written waiver by the City of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other default 
by SWEA. 


 
24. Notices.  All statements, notices and other communications to be given hereunder 


shall be in writing and, unless otherwise provided, shall be deemed to have been duly given when 
delivered in person or when deposited in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, properly addressed, 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address as set forth below, or to such 
other address or addresses as may be designated in writing by notice given to the other party 
pursuant to this paragraph: 


 
To the City: City of Stoughton 


Attn: Mayor Timothy Swadley 
207 S. Forrest Street,  
Stoughton, WI  53589 


 
To SWEA: _______________________ 
  1969 W Hart Rd 
  Beloit, WI 53511 
  


25. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement and supersedes any prior Agreement 







6 
 


whether written or oral of the parties. All Exhibits and Recitals are incorporated into and 
constitute an integral part of this Agreement as if fully set forth in this Agreement. 


 
26. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, 


each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument. 


 
[signature page follows] 


 
 


  







7 
 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the Effective Date. 
 
CITY OF STOUGHTON  


 
 
___________________________________ 
Timothy Swadley, Mayor  
 
ATTEST 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Holly Licht, City Clerk 
 
SOUTHERN WISCONSIN EMERGENCY  
ASSOCIATES 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jack Maher, President  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  







8 
 


 
EXHIBIT A 


QUALIFICATIONS 
 


State of Wisconsin – Department of Health Services – Administrative Code – Chapter 
110 DHS 110.49  


Service medical director. An emergency medical service provider shall have a service 
medical director who meets all of the qualifications under sub. (1) and has all the responsibilities 
under sub. (2): 


 
(1) QUALIFICATIONS. The service medical director shall meet all the following within 180 


days from the date of his or her appointment: 
 
(a) Licensure as a physician. 
(b) Current certification in CPR for health care professionals and, if the medical director 


provides medical direction for an EMT-intermediate or EMT-paramedic emergency medical 
services provider, current certification in ACLS, unless the physician is certified by the American 
Board of Emergency Medicine or the American Osteopathic Board of Emergency Medicine. 


(c) Education, training and experience in emergency medicine. 
(d) Familiarity with the design and operation of pre-hospital EMS systems. 
(e) Experience or training in the EMS quality improvement process. 
(f) Successful completion of the department's service medical director course. 
(g) Any additional requirements prescribed by the department. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/DHS%20110.49(1)

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/DHS%20110.49(2)





9 
 


EXHIBIT B 
RESPONSIBILITIES 


 
“State of Wisconsin – Department of Health Services – Administrative Code – Chapter 


110 
DHS 110.49 
 
(2) RESPONSIBILITIES. The service medical director shall do all of the following: 
(a) Prescribe patient care protocols under which the provider's EMS personnel treat. 
(b) Develop, review and approve in writing all patient care protocols that will be used by 


EMS personnel delivering patient care under the operational plan. 
(c) Ensure that physicians providing on-line medical control do so in a manner consistent 


with the department approved patient care protocols. 
(d) Ensure that all aspects of the emergency medical services are under medical 


supervision and direction at all times. 
(e) Establish, participate in, and ensure the continuing implementation of a quality 


assurance program as part of a patient care improvement process. 
(f) Approve, limit or withdraw credentials as provided under s. DHS 110.52. 
(g) Maintain liaison with the medical community, including hospitals, emergency 


departments, urgent care clinics, physicians, nurses, and other healthcare providers. 
(h) Work with regional, state and local EMS authorities to ensure that standards, needs 


and requirements are met and resource utilization is optimized. 
(i) Maintain, through continuing education, current knowledge and skills appropriate for 


a service medical director. 
(j) Approve, direct, and assist in providing training activities that assure EMS personnel 


are competent to provide safe and efficient patient care, based on the department approved 
patient care protocols.” 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/DHS%20110.52





10 
 


EXHIBIT C 
 


Stoughton Area Emergency Medical Service  
 


Policy on Confidentiality and Dissemination of Patient Information and Staff Member 
Verification 


 
Given the nature of our work, it is imperative that we maintain the confidence of patient 


information that we receive in the course of our work.  Stoughton Area EMS, (“SAEMS”) prohibits 
the release of any patient information to anyone outside the organization unless required for 
purposes of treatment, payment, or health care operations, and discussions of Protected Health 
Information (PHI) within the organization should be limited.  Acceptable uses of PHI within the 
organization include, but are not limited to, exchange of patient information needed for the 
treatment of the patient, billing, and other essential health care operations, peer review, internal 
audits, and quality assurance activities. 


I understand that SAEMS provides services to patients that are private and confidential 
and that I am a crucial step in respecting the privacy rights of SAEMS patients.  I understand that 
it is necessary, in the rendering of SAEMS services, that patients provide personal information 
and that such information may exist in a variety of forms such as electronic, oral, written or 
photographic and that all such information is strictly confidential and protected by federal and 
state laws. 


I agree that I will comply with all confidentiality policies and procedures set in place by 
SAEMS during my entire employment or association with SAEMS.  If I, at any time, knowingly or 
inadvertently breach the patient confidentiality policies and procedures, I agree to notify the 
Privacy Officer of SAEMS immediately.  In addition, I understand that a breach of patient 
confidentiality may result in suspension or termination of my employment or association with 
SAEMS.  


I have read and understand all privacy policies and procedures that have been provided 
to me by SAEMS.  I agree to abide by all policies or be subject to disciplinary action, which may 
include verbal or written warning, suspension, or termination of employment or of any 
membership or association with SAEMS. This is not a contract of employment and does not alter 
the nature of the existing relationship between SAEMS and myself. 


 
 
 
 


Signature: ______________________________________ Date:________________  
Printed Name:_________________________________________________________ 
 


 







3LQ6851  


1127191022  1 


TERMINATION AGREEMENT 


 


This TERMINATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is dated this 


__________________, 2019 (“Effective Date”) between City of Stoughton, a municipal 


corporation (“Stoughton”), and Southern Wisconsin Emergency Associates, S.C., a 


Wisconsin service corporation (“SWEA”). 


 


A. Stoughton and SWEA entered into that certain Agreement dated June 15, 


2006 (“Medical Director Agreement”) attached hereto as Exhibit A whereby SWEA agreed 


to serve as EMS medical director of Stoughton, and SWEA designated one of its employees 


to perform the services of medical director; 


 


B. The parties wish to terminate the Medical Director Agreement and intend to 


enter into a new agreement with SWEA regarding the provision of medical director 


services. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt and sufficiency 


of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 


 


Agreement 


 


1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Section as if 


fully set forth herein. 


 


2. Termination of Medical Director Agreement. The parties hereby terminate the 


Medical Director Agreement effective as of the Effective Date.  


 


3. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each 


of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 


same instrument. Signatures sent and received electronically (e.g., by email with a signed 


PDF attached) shall be deemed originals. 


 


 4. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance 


with the laws of the State of Wisconsin. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure 


to the benefit to each of the parties, and their respective heirs, successors and assigns. This 


Agreement and any term set forth herein may be modified, amended, discharged, changed, or 


waived only in writing signed by all parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 


between the parties hereto with regard to the specific subject matter hereof and supersedes all 


previous agreements, written or oral, between the parties. 


 


 


 


 







3LQ6851  


1127191022  2 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 


 


_______________________________________ 


By: Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


_______________________________________ 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


SOUTHERN WISCONSIN EMEGENCY  


ASSOCIATES, S.C. 


 


_______________________________________ 
Print name:______________________________ 


Title:___________________________________ 


 
 


Attachment: 


Exhibit A: Medical Director Agreement 







Exhibit A













		12a--R- - 2019 Resolution Medical Director Agreement

		12b-Medical Director Agreement (SR rev'd)

		12c-Termination Agreement






 


 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to amend the 2019 City of Stoughton Operating Budget  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee meets December 10, 2019  


 
Fiscal Impact: ($25,000)    
 
File Number:  R-195-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 


 
December 10, 2019 


 


RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2019 ANNUAL CITY BUDGET 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommended the approval of the proposed 2019 City of 


Stoughton Operating Budget amendments to the Common Council on December 10, 2019; and 


 


 WHEREAS, an amendment was made to amend the budgeted transfer to TIF No. 5 in the amount 


of $58,000 to TIF No. 8 due to the restructure of TIF No. 5 and creation of TIF No. 8; and  


 


WHEREAS, an amendment to decrease funding to the EMS Truck Fund by $40,000 and increase 


funding to the EMS Equipment Replacement Fund by $15,000 based on the forecasted funding schedule 


developed by the EMS Director; and 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin does approve the proposed 2019 budget amendments as presented. 


 


Vote:   


 


       12/10/2019                                     


Timothy Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Published: ____________ 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     







Finance Committee
Proposed 2019 Budget Amendments


December 10, 2019


Total Fiscal Impact (25,000)$                          Net Revenue


Amendment 1:


TIF 5 / 8 Advance From General Fund


Account Description Fund Account Type Original Budget


Proposed 


Amended 


Amount


49210 Transfer In -  General Fund TIF 5 Revenue 58,000$               -$                


49210 Transfer In -  General Fund TIF 8 Revenue -$                      58,000$         


Fiscal Impact -$                                  


Reason for Amendment:


Restructure of TIF 5 and creation of TIF 8


Note: The accounting for this will not impact the income statement and will be recorded as a balance sheet item


only. This treatment has been confirmed with the auditors.


Amendment 2:


EMS Truck Fund and EMS Equipment Replacement Funding


Account Description Fund Account Type Original Budget


Proposed 


Amended 


Amount


50932 Transfer to EMS Truck Fund EMS Expense 40,000$               -$                


50933 Transfer to Equip. Rep. Fund EMS Expense 25,000$               40,000$         


49203 Transfer In - EMS Truck Fund Revenue 40,000$               -$                


49203 Transfer In - EMS Equip. Rep. Fund Revenue 25,000$               40,000$         


Fiscal Impact (25,000)$                          


Reason for Amendment:


Based on funding schedule developed by the EMS Director





		13a-R- -2019 - Resolution City of Stoughton 2019 Budget Amendments

		13b-2019 Budget Amendments






1 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Repealing and recreating Section 58-6 and 58-8 and creating Sections 58-12  and 58-13 


of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code relating to Public Nuisances 


Action:   Public Works Committee Approved 3-0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-27-2019 First Reading:   


Second Reading:  


December 10, 2019 


January 14, 2019 


                 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


1. Section 58-6 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is repealed and recreated as follows: 


 


Sec. 58-6 Abatement – generally. 


 


(a)  Responsibility for enforcement; inspections. It shall be the duty of each department head 


to enforce those provisions of this chapter that come within the jurisdiction of their respective 


offices, and each department head shall make or cause to be made periodic inspections and 


inspections upon complaint to ensure such provisions are not violated. No action shall be taken 


under this section to abate a public nuisance unless the officer has inspected or caused to be 


inspected the premises where the nuisance is alleged to exist and has satisfied himself or herself 


that a nuisance does in fact exist. 


 


(b) Summary abatement. 


 


(1) Order of abatement. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance 


exists within the city and that there is imminent danger to the public health, 


safety, peace, morals or decency, the officer may, without notice or hearing, issue 


an order reciting the existence of a public nuisance constituting imminent danger 


to the public and requiring immediate action be taken as the officer deems 


necessary to abate the nuisance. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this 


chapter, the order shall be effective immediately. Any person to whom such order 


is directed shall comply with the order immediately. 


 


(2) Abatement by City. Whenever the owner or occupant shall refuse or neglect to 


remove or abate the condition described in the order, the inspecting officer shall, 


in his or her discretion, enter upon the premises and cause the nuisance to be 


removed or abated and the City shall recover the expenses incurred thereby from 







2 


 


the owner or occupant of the premises or from the person who has caused or 


permitted the nuisance. 


 


(c)  Nonsummary abatement by City. 


 


(1) Order to abate nuisance. If the inspecting officer determines that a public 


nuisance exists on private premises but that the nature of such nuisance is not 


such as to threaten imminent danger to the public health, safety, peace, morals or 


decency, the officer shall issue an order reciting the existence of a public nuisance 


and requiring the person causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance or 


the owner of the premises where the public nuisance is located to remove or abate 


the condition described in the order by a date specified therein (the abatement 


date). The order shall be served personally on such person and the owner if 


different, and, at the option of the inspecting officer, the order may be mailed to 


the last known address of the person(s) to be served. If the owner or the occupant 


cannot be served, the order may be served by posting it on the main entrance of 


the property or by publishing as a Class 3 notice under W.S.A. Chapter 985. The 


time limit specified in the order runs from the earlier of the date of posting, 


service or publication. 


 


(2) Abatement by City. If the owner or occupant fails or refuses to comply within the 


time period prescribed, the inspecting officer shall enter upon the premises and 


cause the nuisance to be removed or abated and the City shall recover the 


expenses incurred thereby from the owner or occupant of the premises or from the 


person who has caused or permitted the nuisance. 


 


(3) Remedy from abatement order. Any person affected by an order under this section 


shall, prior to the abatement date, apply to the circuit court for an order restraining 


the City from entering on the premises and abating or removing the nuisance, or 


be forever barred. 


 


(d)  Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance under this 


section shall be collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining 


the nuisance and, if notice to abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such 


cost shall be assessed against the real estate as a special charge.  


 


(e)  Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this section shall be construed as 


prohibiting the abatement of public nuisances by the City or its officials in accordance with the 


laws of the State. The city reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public 


nuisance, damages and costs under chapter 823, Wis. Stat. and to enforce any judgment entered 


in such action.  


 


(f)  Other action. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance exists within the 


city, the officer may cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon the 


person causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the owner of the premises 


where the public nuisance is located.   







3 


 


 


2. Section 58-8(6) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is repealed and replaced with the 


following: 


 


(6) Noxious weeds and wild growth. All noxious weeds and other rank growth 


of vegetation.  


 


 (a)  Required. The owner of any land within the city shall destroy all 


noxious weeds and keep mowed all grasses, as defined in subsection (b) of 


this section, which grow on owner’s property and on any terraces and 


ditches abutting such property. 


 


(b) Defined. The term "noxious weed" or "weeds" as used in this 


section are defined by Wis. Stat. §23.235 and §66.0407, respectively, as 


amended, and also include those weeds set forth is § 58.11 and shall also 


include common ragweed (Ambrosia atemisiifolia), giant ragweed 


(Ambrosia trifida) and burdock (Actrium spp.); all other plants defined as 


noxious by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources; and all other 


grasses over twelve (12) inches in height. 


 


(c)  Managed natural landscape areas. Planned natural and native 


landscape areas grown in a managed landscape plan will be allowed and 


shall not be subject to this section if the areas meet and are maintained as 


per the following criteria: All natural landscape areas shall comply with all 


Wisconsin law and may include native and naturalized plants including, but 


not necessarily limited to, ferns, wildflowers, grasses, shrubs and trees. 


These areas are to be kept free of all "noxious weed" or "weeds" as defined 


in this section at all times. Natural landscape areas shall be set back a 


minimum of ten (10) feet from all property lines and driveways unless the 


property is abutted by a roadway, fence or similar barrier separating it from 


adjoining residential properties, then the natural landscaping may be planted 


up to the property line (inside the sidewalk). 


(d) Enforcement. Failure to correct a violation of this section may 


result in nuisance abatement as defined in section §58-6 of this ordinance 


and penalties as provided in § 58-3 and § 1-3. 


 


(e) Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of 


a nuisance under this section shall be collected from the owner, occupant 


or person causing, permitting or maintaining the nuisance and, if notice to 


abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such cost 


shall be assessed against the real estate as a special charge.  


 


(f) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this section 


shall be construed as prohibiting the abatement of public nuisances by the 


City or its officials in accordance with the laws of the State. The city 







4 


 


reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public 


nuisance, damages and costs under chapter 823, Wis. Stat. and to enforce 


any judgment entered in such action.  


 


(g) Other action. If the director of public work determines that a 


public nuisance exists within the city under this section, the director may 


cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon 


the person causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the 


owner or occupant of the premises where the public nuisance is located.   


 


3. Section 58-12 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created to read: 


 


Sec. 58-12.  Diseased, infested or dangerous trees or other plantings a nuisance. 


 


(a) Public nuisances declared.  The continued existence of diseased, infested or dangerous 


trees, as defined in section 58-12 (c), or other plantings, and the failure to properly treat or 


control the same which is likely to cause the spread of disease or infestation or endanger persons 


because of the deteriorated condition, is hereby declared to be a public nuisance requiring 


abatement. 


  


(b) Abatement 


 


(1) Order. Whenever the director of public works shall find on examination that any 


tree or shrub or part thereof growing or located upon private premises is a public 


nuisance as defined in this section, he or she shall notify the owner, or if the owner 


is unknown and there is a tenant or operator occupying said property then to such 


tenant or operator, in writing that the nuisance must be sprayed, removed, or 


otherwise abated as directed in the order within the time specified, which shall not 


be less than 14 days unless the director of public works shall determine that 


immediate action is necessary for public safety or health. The order shall be served 


personally on the owner, or if the owner is unknown and there is a tenant or 


operator occupying said property then to such tenant or operator, and, at the option 


of the director of public works may be mailed to the last known address of the 


person(s) to be served. If the owner or the occupant cannot be served, the order 


may be served by posting it on the main entrance of the property or by publishing 


as a Class 3 notice under W.S.A. Chapter 985. The time limit specified in the order 


runs from the earlier of the date of posting, service or publication. 


 


(2) Abatement by city. If the owner of such premises or occupant if different from owner 


refuses or neglects to comply with the notice to abate a nuisance under this section within 


the time specified, the director of public works shall cause the nuisance to be sprayed, 


removed or otherwise abated and shall report the expense thereof to the city treasurer, 


who shall enter it as a charge against the property upon which the tree or shrub is located. 


 


(3) Appeals. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the 


abatement date, apply to the circuit court for an order restraining the City from 







5 


 


entering on the premises and abating or removing the nuisance, or be forever 


barred. 


 


(4) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this article shall be construed 


as prohibiting the abatement of public nuisances by the City or its officials in 


accordance with the laws of the State. The city reserves all rights to commence an 


action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs under chapter 823, 


Wis. Stat. and to enforce any judgment entered in such action.  


 


(5) Other action. If the director of public works determines that a public nuisance 


exists within the city, the director may cause to be issued and served a citation for 


violation of this section upon the person causing, permitting or maintaining the 


public nuisance and the owner or occupant of the premises where the public 


nuisance is located.   


 


(c)  Dangerous Trees 


 


(1) Definition. "Dangerous tree" means any tree which, in the opinion of the director 


of public works, is so decayed or injured, or which for any other reason is likely 


to fall upon any sidewalk, street or other public property. 


 


(2) Notice to remove. Whenever the director of public works shall have notice of a 


dangerous tree which is likely to fall, it shall give notice in writing to the owner of 


the land where such tree is located, requiring the owner to remove the tree within 


14 days after receiving the notice. The notice may be served personally on the 


owner or agent thereof or by registered mail addressed to the owner or agent. 


 


(3)  Appeals. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the 


abatement date, apply to the circuit court for an order restraining the City from 


entering on the premises and abating or removing the nuisance, or be forever 


barred. 
 


(4)  Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this article shall be construed 


as prohibiting the abatement of public nuisances by the City or its officials in 


accordance with the laws of the State. The city reserves all rights to commence an 


action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs under chapter 823, 


Wis. Stat. and to enforce any judgment entered in such action. 
 


(5)  Other action. If the director of public works determines that a public nuisance 


exists within the city, the director may cause to be issued and served a citation for 


violation of this section upon the person causing, permitting or maintaining the 


public nuisance and the owner or occupant of the premises where the public 


nuisance is located. 


 


(6)  Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance 


under this section shall be collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, 







6 


 


permitting or maintaining the nuisance and, if notice to abate the nuisance, if 


applicable, has been given to the owner, such cost shall be assessed against the 


real estate as a special charge. 


 


4. Section 58-13 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created as follows:  


 


Section 58-13.  Interference Prohibited.  No person shall prevent, delay or interfere with 


the director of public works, or designee, or any of his/her agents or employees while they are 


engaged in the performance of duties imposed by this chapter. No person shall refuse to permit 


the director or employees of the department of public works to enter upon his premises at 


reasonable times to exercise the duties imposed by this section or permit any public nuisance to 


remain on any premises owned or controlled by him when ordered by the director of public 


works to abate such nuisance. 


 


5. This ordinance shall be effective upon passage and publication pursuant to law. 


 


 


 


  







7 


 


 


  


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 








Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, December 10, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, 


Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Brett Schumacher  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 December 24, 2019 Council meeting is canceled.  


 Senior Center Accreditation Presentation  


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


Finance (11/12/19); CACP (11/5/2019)  


 


3. Public Comment Period:  


 Taxi Service Expanded Hours  


 
 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. November 26, 2019 Council Minutes  


B. R-189-2019-  Resolution Appointing Election Inspectors for the 2020-2021 term 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-25-2019- Amending Chapter 50-6 Subsection (b) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by 


adding Nordic Ridge Park to the list of City Parks where alcohol is allowed by permit (Public Safety 


approved 4-0on November 21, 2019)      SECOND READING 


 


6. O-26-2019- Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation of a Portion of the Town of Dunn to the 


City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (Planning approved 5-2 on November 11, 2019)  


          SECOND READING 
 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


7. R- 190-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement to 


continue participation in the Madison Area Municipal Storm Water Partnership (MAMSWaP) 


(Finance meets December 10, 2019)  


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


8. R-191-2019- Approving a financial agreement between the State of Wisconsin and the City of 


Stoughton for costs for the construction of roundabouts on US Highway 51 at Hoel/Silverado, STH 


138 and Roby Road scheduled to be constructed in 2021. (Finance approved 5-0 on November 26, 


2019) 


 


9. R-192-2019- To authorize an increase in operating hours for Stoughton Transit and to authorize the 


Addendum to the 2018 Shared Ride Taxi Contract with Running Inc. (Finance meets December 10, 


2019)  


 


10. R-193-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to engage Baker Tilly for Utilities 


audit services for the years ending 2019, 2020 and 2021 (Finance approved 5-0 on November 26, 


2019)  


 


11. R-194-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to utilize excess funds in the 2019 


Capital Outlay Budget not to exceed $2,500 to cover deficiencies in the 2019 Body Camera 


Replacement budget. (Finance approved 5-0 on November 26, 2019)  


 


12. R- 195-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to terminate the existing Medical 


Director Agreement and enter into a new agreement with Southern Wisconsin Emergency 


Associates, S.C. (SWEA) regarding the provision of Medical Director Services (Finance meets on 


December 10, 2019)  


 


13. R-196-2019- Authorizing and Directing the proper city official (s) to amend the 2019 City of 


Stoughton Operating Budget (Finance meets on December 10, 2019)  


 


14. O-27-2019- Repealing and recreating Section 58-6 and 58-8 and creating Sections 58-12 and 58-13 


of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code relating to Public Nuisances (Public Works approved 3-0)             


             FIRST READING 
 


 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  


 








FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 


November 12, 2019 @ 6:00 PM 


Council Chambers 321 S. Fourth St. Stoughton, WI  


 


Present: 


Greg Jenson, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Ozzie Doom and Mayor Tim Swadley 


 


Absent and Excused: 


None 


 


Others Present:  


Finance Director Friedl, Clerk Licht, Planning Director Scheel, HR Director Gillingham and 


Police Chief Leck 


 


Call to Order 


Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 


 


Communications 


 


 


Reports 


 Contingency Report 


 


NEW BUSINESS 
 


Approval of the October 22, 2019 Finance Committee Minutes 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 


 


Resolution approving the City of Stoughton – Stoughton Area EMS contracts for 


Emergency Medical Services with area Townships 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve. Motion carried 5-0. 


 


Resolution approving the City of Stoughton Post Issuance Compliance Policies and 


Procedures 


Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve. Motion carried 5-0.  


 


Discussion and possible action regarding existing lease agreements where the City of 


Stoughton is considered to be the Lessor. 


The committee did not discuss or take action on this item. It will be back before the 


committee at the next meeting.  


 


Resolution approving excess funds from the Capital Outlay Fund not exceed $7,000 to 


place a lighted crosswalk at the intersection of Greig and N. Page.  


Motion by Reeves, second by Schumacher to recommend that council approve a resolution 


approving excess fund from the Capital Outlay Fund not to exceed $7,000 to place a lighted 


crosswalk at the intersection of Grieg and N. Page. Motion carried 5-0. 







 


Resolution approving expenses not to exceed $3,200 in fiscal year 2019 from contingency 


funds for an Interim Fire Chief*** 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to reconvene in open session a t 6:41 p.m. Motion 


carried 5-0. 


 


  


 


 


Resolution approving the Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between 


American Beauty Investments, LLC (dba: Exclusively Roses) and the City of Stoughton, WI 


for the property located at 421 Glacier Moraine Drive. *** 


 


Motion by Reeves, second by Schumacher to go into closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(e) 


for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the investing 


of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 


bargaining reasons deem a closed session necessary at 6:05 p.m. Motion carried on roll call vote 


5-0. 


 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
CIP Purchasing Policy  


 


Adjournment 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to adjourn at 6:54 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk 







 


COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/COUNCIL POLICY MEETING MINUTES 


Tuesday, November 5, 2019 @ 6:00 PM  


ED OVERLAND ROOM, OPERA HOUSE, 381 E MAIN ST. STOUGHTON, WI  


Present:  


Alders Jean Ligocki, Brett Schumacher, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch and Tim Swadley  


Also Present:  


Holly Licht City Clerk  


Absent and Excused:  


None  


Call to Order:  


Ligcocki called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


Communications: 


Ligocki stated that the listening session for the KPW TIF request have been scheduled.  


Discussion and possible action regarding recognizing the second Monday in October as 
Indigenous People’s Day 
Jason Yellow Bird stated that Native American population in Stoughton is probably about 12 people.  He 


stated that he appreciated the gesture of Indigenous Peoples Day idea, but would like couple it with 


action and thought it would send a better message to the Native community. Heili said that also talked 


with the Ho Chunk Nation Municipal Representative and she could provide more information to the 


committee. Ligocki said she would like to see the service component but doesn’t think we have 


completely do away with Columbus Day. Hirsch added that it could be beneficial to partner with the 


school district.  


Discussion and possible action regarding Mobile Food Carts: 


Clerk Licht shared the concerns that Leadership had with the draft. The committee decided it would 


review the fees after the first year to see if changes needed to be made. The committee directed Clerk 


Licht to send the draft the City Attorney.   


Discussion and possible action regarding energy targets and sustainability  
Mayor Swadley said that Utilities Director Weiss would help. Committee wants to the see walk through 


results from City Buildings to gauge an idea of where we are heading. Heili stated that we should be 


working with other members of WPPI. He added that the committee needed to define their role in 


sustainability.   


Approval of the October 1, 2019 Minutes: 


Motion by Heili, second by Hirsch to approve. Motion carried 5-0.  


Discussion and possible action regarding increases fees for city dog licenses to account for 


the 2020 increase of the County Dog Tax 
Clerk Licht explained that Dane County is raising the dog tax by $5 and the city will need to increase the 


costs of dog licenses to make up for the loss of revenue. Hirsch stated that cats need to be licensed as 







well. Motion by Ligocki, second by Heili to recommend that council increase the fees by $5. Motion 


carried 4-0 with Ligocki abstaining.  


 


Discussion regarding a social media policy for local officials 
The committee did not discuss or take action on this item. It will be back before the committee at its 


next meeting. 


Discussion and possible action regarding a Joint City/School Board Committee meeting 
The committee sated that a joint committee would need to be a smaller group so we can understand 


people’s goals. Alder Schumacher stated that he would communicate with the school board to see what 


their goals were and see if they were interested in meeting. This item will be back before the committee 


at its next meeting.   


Adjournment:  


Motion by Heili, second by Ligocki to adjourn at 7:41 p.m. Motion carried 5-0.  


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk  





		01-November 12, 2019 Finance Minutes

		02-November 5, 2019 CACP Minutes






 
 


1 
Common Council Minutes November 26, 2019 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, November 26, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, 


Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Brett Schumacher  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  


 


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted that there were 11 alders present. Majewski joined the meeting at 


7:04 p.m.  


 


Schumacher stated that he completed the Citizens Academy and commended Chief Leck for a great 


program.  


 


Callie LaPoint presented the Visitor Services 2020 Budget Presentation. 


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record.  


Planning (10/14/19; Landmarks (10/10/19); RDA (9/11/19, 10/9/19); Utilities (10/14/19); Public Works 


(10/17/19); Finance (10/22/19); Public Safety (10/30/19)  


 


Public Comment Period:  


 David Baehr, 2616 Happy Valley Rd. Sun Prairie, spoke regarding R-188-2019. He stated 


that the access to the SWAC would be difficult with the proposed roundabout.  


 
 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. November 12, 2019 Council Minutes  


B. R-177-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants 


C. Stoughton Utilities October Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities Financial Summary; 


Stoughton Utilities September Statistical Report  


D. R-178-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Proposed 


Electric Rate Application Filing, and direct staff to submit a rate application to the Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin. (Utilities approved 6-0 on October 14, 2019) 


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Heili to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


R-176-2019- Resolution approving the Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between 


American Beauty Investments, LLC (dba: Exclusively Roses) and the City of Stoughton, WI for the 


property located at 421 Glacier Moraine Drive.  


  


 







 
 


2 
Common Council Minutes November 26, 2019 


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-176-2019 Resolution approving the Real Estate 


Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between American Beauty Investments, LLC (dba: Exclusively 


Roses) and the City of Stoughton, WI for the property located at 421 Glacier Moraine Drive.   


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Riley to authorize that Mayor Swadley be able to negotiate changes to 


the terms of the contract. Boersma withdrew his motion.  


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Hirsch to authorize Mayor Swadley to be able to negotiate changes to 


the agreement and to require that the final agreement include the characteristics that were included in the 


planning commission packet and require the inclusion of the coolers and other equipment at minimum. 


Motion carried 12-0.  


 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding Finance Committee recommendation on Kettle Park 


West Phase II TIF application *** The City Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 


19.85(1)(e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the 


investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 


bargaining reasons deem a closed session necessary. The City Council may reconvene in an open 


session to discuss and take action on the subject matter discussed in the closed session*** 


 


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve the recommendation of the Finance 


Committee is to direct the appropriate City official(s) to begin working with the developer on an 


Agreement to Undertake Development incorporating the main elements as presented at the 


September 17, 2019 Finance Committee meeting. Alder Ligocki stated that the theme from the 


listening sessions was that Stoughton needs more residential developments. She added that there 


were very few individuals that expressed concerns. Finance director Friedl highlighted the 


summary of main elements from the City’s and KPW perspectives.  


 


Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to go into closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(e) for the 


purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 


conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons deem a closed 


session necessary at 8:57 p.m. Motion carried on roll call vote 11-0. Boersma was not at the table. 


Motion by Jenson, second by Ligocki to go into open session at 10:36 p.m. Motion carried 11-0.  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Hirsch Authorize staff to prepare a development agreement to 


include the following chages: in section 1c-include a one-way lookback with ceiling intro rate of 


return at 15%.; amend item 1F to include: that no lots south of the street that is located South 


Jackson Street could be sold until Oak Opening drive is extended to 138 or near 138 if the 


intersection is not complete; amend item 6 to include: as a requirement the property located 


south of the roundabout be conveyed to the city at no costs to the city. Motion carried on roll call 


vote 11-0 with Boersma abstaining.  


 


Original motion carried 9-2 with Heili and Majewski voting ‘no’ and Boersma abstaining. 


 
 







 
 


3 
Common Council Minutes November 26, 2019 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-179-2019- Approving Designated Snowmobile routes in City right of ways  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Heili to approve R-179-2019 Approving Designated Snowmobile routes 


in City right of ways. Motion carried 12-0.  


 


R-180-2019-Authoizing and directing the proper City Official (s) to approve an operator license for Erin 


Henderson  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Heili to approve R-180-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper City 


Official (s) to approve an operator license for Erin Henderson.  Ligocki stated that the applicant has 


rehabilitated herself and is deserving a second chance. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-181-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City Official (s) to Suspend Ordinance 70-186, 


Downtown 2 Hour Parking Regulations, from November 29, 2019 to January 1, 2020  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Hirsch R-181-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper City Official (s) 


to Suspend Ordinance 70-186, Downtown 2 Hour Parking Regulations, from November 29, 2019 to 


January 1, 2020.  Motion carried 12-0. 


 


O-25-2019- Amending Chapter 50-6 Subsection (b) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by 


adding Nordic Ridge Park to the list of City Parks where alcohol is allowed by permit  


 


Jenson offered O-25-2019 as a first reading. It will before the council on December 10, 2019.  


 


O-26-2019- Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation of a Portion of the Town of Dunn to the 


City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 


 


Caravello offered O-26-2019 as a first reading. It will be before the council on December 10, 2019. 


        


R-182-2019- Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Natalie Richter for Pumpkin Patch 


Daycare and Nursery School at 1940 Jackson Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Majewski to approve R-182-2019 Approving a Conditional Use 


Permit request by Natalie Richter for Pumpkin Patch Daycare and Nursery School at 1940 


Jackson Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R- 183-2019- Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for property located at 1940 Jackson 


Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Majewksi to approve R-183-2019 Approving a Certified Survey 


Map (CSM) for property located at 1940 Jackson Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. The current 


building will come down before the 1st of the year and the new building will be open by August 


1st. Motion carried 12-0. 


 







 
 


4 
Common Council Minutes November 26, 2019 


R-184 -2019- Approving a New Housing Fee Report and Housing Affordability Report for the 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin.  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve R-184-2019 Approving a New Housing Fee 


Report and Housing Affordability Report for the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. Motion carried 


12-0. 


 


R-185-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to approve Change Order No. 


3 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project 


 


Motion by Hirsch, second by Jenson to approve Authorizing and directing the proper City 


official (s) to approve Change Order No. 3 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project. 


Motion carried 12-0. 


 


 


R-186-2019- Approving the City of Stoughton Post Issuance Compliance Policies and 


Procedures  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-186-2019 Approving the City of 


Stoughton Post Issuance Compliance Policies and Procedures. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-187-2019-Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to utilize excess funds in the 


2019 Capital Outlay Budget not to exceed $7,000 for a new lighted crosswalk at the intersection 


of Greig N. Page 


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-187-2019 Authorizing and directing the 


proper City official (s) to utilize excess funds in the 2019 Capital Outlay Budget not to exceed 


$7,000 for a new lighted crosswalk at the intersection of Greig and N. Page St. Motion carried 


12-0. 


 


R-188-2019- Requesting the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) to consider 


improving access to the Stoughton Wellness Center at 2300 USH 51/138 as part of the project to 


install roundabouts on US Highway 51 at Hoel/Silverado, STH 138 and Roby Road scheduled to 


be constructed in 2021  


 


Motion by Bartlett, second by Reeves to approve R-188-2019 Requesting the Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation (DOT) to consider improving access to the Stoughton Wellness 


Center at 2300 USH 51/138 as part of the project to install roundabouts on US Highway 51 at 


Hoel/Silverado, STH 138 and Roby Road scheduled to be constructed in 2021. Motion carried 


12-0. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn by Jenson, second by Ligocki at 10:42 p.m. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk 








 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Appointing Election Inspectors in the City of Stoughton for the 2020-2021 term. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Committee Action: 


 
None 


   
File Number: 


 
R-189-2019 


 
Date Introduced:   December 10, 2019 


 
WHEREAS, the Election Inspectors named on the attached list have served at elections in the 


City of Stoughton and have completed the necessary training as mandated by state law, and 


 


WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statutes provide that the City Council and Mayor shall appoint Election 


Inspectors in December of odd numbered years to serve for two years, and 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


that the Election Inspectors on the attached list be appointed to fill the 2020-2021 term. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 







BARNETT, BOB CHIEF


AABERG, JANET INSP


AIDE, ABBY INSP


AIDE, CARRIE INSP


BAKKEN, HELEN INSP


BARNETT, MARY INSP


BRIKOWSKI, JEFF INSP


BROADBENT, PATRICIA INSP


BRUNSELL, ANNE INSP


BUCHANAN, BILL INSP


BUCHANAN, CORNELIA INSP


BURDICK, DORIS INSP


BURT, GEOFFREY INSP


BURT, JEANNE INSP


BUTRUM, LUCINDA INSP


CARPENTER, LAURA INSP


CROSS, CLYDE INSP


CROSS, MARY JO INSP


CUNNINGHAM, JEFF INSP


CURTISS, CINDY CHIEF


DARROW, RYAN INSP


DENEEN, CAROL INSP


DUESEL, VICTOR INSP


DUTILLY, HENRI INSP


DUTILLY, KATHLEEN INSP


DURANCZYK, DENISE INSP


ERDMAN, DAVE CHIEF


ERICKSON, CHARLES (BUD) INSP


FENDRICK, MARY LOU INSP


FLYNN, DEBRA INSP


FOGELL, DONNA INSP


FORTNEY, RUTH INSP


FORTNEY, STEVE INSP


GARCIA, NANCY INSP


GRIGGS, MIKE INSP


GRIGGS, PAM INSP


HALOM, DIANE INSP


HALVERSON, LINDA INSP


HANISKO, DEBRA INSP


HASBURGH, LAURA INSP


HORTON, RUSS CHIEF


HOWARD, JEANNE A INSP


HUSTON, MELISSA INSP


JACKSON, JILL INSP


JACKY, HENRY INSP







JACKY, JUDI INSP


JAEHNIG-OLSON, LISA INSP


JONES, ANNE INSP


KAHL, EVELYN INSP


KAPING, JOYCE INSP


KETTERER, AMY INSP


KETTERER, TONY CHIEF


KILEN, NANCY INSP


KITTLESON, MARGE INSP


KLUEVER, KEN INSP


KOMES, BOB INSP


LAMERS, MARTY INSP


LANE, LINDA INSP


LICHT, STEPHANIE INSP


LOFTUS, SANDI INSP


MACDONALD, RICHARD INSP


MAERZ, SANDRA INSP


MCDERMOTT, KONNIE INSP


MCGEEVER, BOB CHIEF


MCGEEVER, CORINNE INSP


MCNAUGHTON, GLENN INSP


MCNAUGHTON, MARY INSP


MORRIS, KAREN INSP


NANCE-MONGOLD, ELIZABETH INSP


NELSON, BRADLEY INSP


NELSON, TINAMARIE INSP


NIELSEN, YVONNE INSP


O'CONNOR, PAT INSP


PATTERSON, SUZANNE INSP


RIGDON, CATHY CHIEF


RUPP, LINDA INSP


SCHENKENBERG, LEITHA INSP


SILBAUGH, JANET INSP


SILBAUGH, RUDY INSP


SILBAUGH, SHARON (sandra's sister) INSP


SMITH, COLBY CHIEF


SMITH, ROSANNE INSP


STACEY, EILEEN INSP


STAKE, SEAN CHIEF


STECHSCHULTE, ROBERT INSP


STOKSTAD, LAURA INSP


STRANDLIE, ROGER INSP


STRANDLIE, SUSAN CHIEF


SWANGSTU, LINDA INSP


SYLVESTER, SUSAN INSP


TECHE, AARON CHIEF







THALACKER, KRISTY INSP


THOMPSON, INGRID INSP


TOROSIAN, TIMOTHY INSP


TRANSUE, DIANE INSP


TRIELOFF, JERRY INSP


VEUM, BARB INSP


WAGAMAN, JUDY INSP


WALL-DONELAN, DIANE INSP


WEIS, CHRIS INSP


WEISS, MARY INSP


WENTORF, KIM INSP


WHITMIRE, KATHLEEN INSP


WOOSTER-LEHMANN, MARIAH INSP


WROLSTAD, DARRELL INSP





		04b-R-  -2019 Approving Election Inspectors for 2020-2021 election term

		04b-list of election inspectors






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 50-6 Subsection (b) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by adding Nordic Ridge 


Park to the list of City Parks where alcohol is allowed by permit. 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommended approval 4-0 on November 21, 2019 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-25-2019  First Reading: November 26, 2019 


Second Reading: December 10, 2019 


 


1. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Amend Sec. 50-6 Alcohol beverages in public places. To amend Sub Section (b) by adding Nordic Ridge 


Park to the list of parks where alcohol is allowed by permit. 


 


          Sec. 50-6-176. – Alcohol beverages in public places. 


 Alcohol permitted. Fermented malt beverages and wine coolers may be possessed and 


consumed in Mandt Park, Virgin Lake Park, East Park, Bjoin Park, Norse Park, Rotary Park, and 


Racetrack Park, and Nordic Ridge Park only with the prior written authorization of the parks 


and recreation department and city clerk. Application for written authorization shall be filed 


with the parks and recreation department along with the applicable fee and deposit, which 


amounts may be modified from time to time by action of the common council. Fermented 


malt beverages, wine, and wine coolers may be sold and purchased in Mandt Park, Rotary 


Park, Norse Park, Nordic Ridge Park, and Racetrack Park only in accordance with section 14-


461(1)(o) of the City Ordinances.  


 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH14BU_ARTXVIFE_S14-461LIFE

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH14BU_ARTXVIFE_S14-461LIFE






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\11-26-19\11a-O-26-2019 Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation of a Portion of the Town of 
Dunn.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DIRECT ANNEXATION  


OF A PORTION OF THE TOWN OF DUNN TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN 


 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval 5 - 2 
Fiscal Impact:       $0 


File Number: O-26-2019 First Reading: 
Second Reading:  


November 26, 2019 
December 10, 2019 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. DVORAK INVESTMENTS II, LLC (“Owner”) owns land in the Town of Dunn as 


described in Exhibit A (the “Territory”) and is seeking to annex the Territory to the City of 
Stoughton, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


 
B. The City of Stoughton Plan Commission has recommended that the Territory be annexed to 


the City, and that the Territory be assigned a temporary zoning classification of RH- Rural 
Holding. 
 


C. The proposed annexation is in the process of being reviewed by the Wisconsin Department 
of Administration. 
 


D. The annexation represents approximately 51.315 acres from the Town of Dunn. 
 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 


ORDINANCE 
 
1. Recitals.  The above recitals are material to and are incorporated in this Ordinance. 


 
2. Territory Annexed.  The Territory is annexed to the City of Stoughton pursuant to 


Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


3. Effect of Annexation.  From and after the effective date of this ordinance, the 
Territory shall be a part of the City of Stoughton for any and all purposes provided by 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\11-26-19\11a-O-26-2019 Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation of a Portion of the Town of 
Dunn.doc 


law, and all persons coming or residing within such Territory shall be subject to all 
ordinances, rules, and regulations governing the City of Stoughton. 


4. Temporary Zoning Designation.  The Territory shall be temporarily zoned R-H Rural 
Holding. 


5. Ward Designation.  The Territory shall be added to Ward No. 16 of the City of 
Stoughton. 


6. Clerk Duties.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of and provide 
copies of this Ordinance in accordance with the applicable Wisconsin Statutes. 


7. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as 
provided by law. 
 
 


 
APPROVED: 
 
 
By:        
Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Holly Licht, City Clerk 


APPROVED:  ___________ 
PUBLISHED: ___________ 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\11-26-19\11a-O-26-2019 Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation of a Portion of the Town of 
Dunn.doc 


 
 
 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Dvorak Annexation 2019.doc 


 


 
ANNEXATION  PETITION 


 
UNANIMOUS PETITION FOR DIRECT ANNEXATION 


UNDER § 66.0217(2), WIS. STATS. 


To the City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin: 


1. The undersigned hereby petition for direct annexation of the territory legally 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto to the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, whereby said territory would be detached from the Town of Dunn, 
Dane County, Wisconsin, pursuant to § 66.0217(2), Wis. Stats. 


2. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a scale map which accurately reflects the 
legal description of the property to be annexed and the boundary of the 
annexing the City and includes a graphic scale on the face of the map. 


3. The current population of the territory proposed to be annexed is 0. 


4. This petition has been signed by the owners of all of the land within the 
territory proposed to be annexed, and by all of the electors residing 
within the territory proposed to be annexed. 


Owners of All Lands Within the Territory Proposed to 
be Annexed:  


Name of Owner: Dvorak Investments II, LLC 


Address of Owner: 1081 Eagle Court 
Edgerton, WI. 53534 


Date of Signing: May 7, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 By: 
Robert H. Dvorak, 
Authorized Member 


Signature: 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Dvorak Annexation 2019.doc 


EXHIBIT  A 
RHD Properties LLC  
Annexation Legal Description 
 
Parcel 1: 
A part of the Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ and a part of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ all 
within Section 36, Township 6 North, Range 10 East in the Town of Dunn, Dane County, 
Wisconsin. More particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the East ¼ corner of said Section 36; thence South 01°22’47” West along the East 
line of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 36, a distance of 66.01 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 
continuing South 01°22’47” West along the East line of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 36, a 
distance of 1246.53 feet to the Southeast corner of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; thence 
North 89°42’12” West along the South line of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼, a distance of 
1311.99 feet to the Southwest corner of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; thence North 
01°11’51” East along the West line of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼, a distance of 
1319.32 feet to the Northwest corner of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; thence North 
01°17’52” East along the West line of the said Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼, a distance of 
1091.70 feet to a point on the Southwesterly right-of-way of USH 51; thence along the 
Southwesterly right-of-way of USH 51 the following courses: 


1) Thence South 51°30’25” East, a distance of 181.94 feet; 
2) Thence South 36°34’32” East, a distance of 155.24 feet; 
3) Thence South 51°30’25” East, a distance of 200.00 feet; 
4) Thence South 68°12’22” East, a distance of 104.40 feet; 
5) Thence South 51°30’25” East, a distance of 316.16 feet to a point at the intersection of the 


westerly property line of lands owned by Wisconsin Department of Transportation; 
Thence leaving the said right-of-way of USH 51 South 10°09’19” East along the westerly property 
line of lands owned by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, a distance of 381.88 feet; 
thence South 29°57’19” East along the westerly property line of lands owned by the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation, a distance of 146.40 feet to a point on the North line of Lot 1 of 
Certified Survey Map No. 8634 recorded in Volume 47, Pages 224-225 as Document No. 2869955; 
thence along the boundary of said Lot 1 the following courses: 


1) Thence North 89°23’36” West, a distance of 1.02 feet; 
2) Thence North 30°03’52” West, a distance of 26.76 feet; 
3) Thence North 89°24’19” West, a distance of 286.90 feet; 
4) Thence South 01°57’05” West, a distance of 428.79 feet;  
5) Thence North 87°23’21” East, a distance of 157.87 feet; 
6) Thence North 02°11’39” East, a distance of 330.86 feet; 
7) Thence South 89°24’19” East, a distance of 402.03 feet to a point on the said Southwesterly 


right-of-way of USH 51; 
Thence leaving the said boundary of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 8634 and continuing South 
89°24’19” East, a distance of 156.96 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Said Parcel contains 2,235,268 square feet or 51.315 acres more or less. 
 







EXHIBIT  B















August 20, 2019 PETITION FILE NO. 14248


HOLLY LICHT, CLERK
CITY OF STOUGHTON
207 S FORREST ST
STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1724


CATHY HASSLINGER, CLERK
TOWN OF DUNN
4156 COUNTY RD B
MC FARLAND, WI 53558-9754


Subject: DVORAK INVESTMENTS ANNEXATION


Section 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats., provides that the annexation of lands to cities and villages within a county 
having a population of 50,000 or more shall be reviewed by the Department of Administration in order to 
determine if the proposed annexation is in the public interest or against the public interest. The proposed 
annexation from the TOWN OF DUNN to the CITY OF STOUGHTON (see attached description) must be 
reviewed pursuant to the statute.


To assist us in making this determination, we urge that you promptly supply the data requested on the 
enclosed questionnaire (where possible) and return the questionnaire to the department.


The purpose of this questionnaire is to assist the department in determining "Whether the governmental 
services, including zoning, to be supplied to the territory could clearly be better supplied by the town...." 
The statute further stipulates that the department shall study the "shape of the proposed annexation and the 
homogeneity of the territory with the annexing municipality." In addition, we would appreciate receiving 
from you any comments or information bearing on governmental services or shape and homogeneity that 
would indicate whether the annexation is in or against the public interest.


Please return the questionnaire as soon as possible so that the information can be reviewed prior to the 
department's statutory deadline of September 10, 2019. Direct any questions and comments to Erich 
Schmidtke at (608) 264-6102. Thank you for your cooperation.


For additional information on annexation or other land use issues, visit our web site at 
http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview/.


Sincerely,


Erich Schmidtke


Enclosures


TONY EVERS


JOEL BRENNAN


GOVERNOR


SECRETARY


Municipal Boundary Review
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview







CITY OF STOUGHTON   RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF     DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


  


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


 


 
August 22, 2019 
 
Municipal Boundary Review – DOA 
Attention: Erich Schmidtke 
101 E. Wilson Street 
P.O. Box 1645, Madison, WI 53701 
 


Re: Dvorak Investments II, LLC Annexation: Petition File No. 14248  
 
Dear Mr. Schmidtke: 
 
I have attached the completed Annexation Review Questionnaire for the above annexation 
petition.  This letter is intended to supplement the responses within the questionnaire. 
 


 The petition area is located within the City’s Comprehensive Plan to accommodate urban 
development as part the City of Stoughton.  Our Future Land Use Map (copy included) 
depicts this area as part of the Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area.  


 The petition area is contiguous to a large tract of land south of CTH B on the east side of 
USH 51 that is already in the City limits.    


 While this property is currently not in the Urban Service Area, it is anticipated an Urban 
Service Area amendment will be pursued to include the petition area as the plan for 
development evolves.  Having this property within the City will bolster the application for 
an Urban Service Area Amendment.   


 As reflected in the questionnaire, this property is currently undeveloped and the Town 
taxes for five years (total $257) will be paid to the Town. 


 Stoughton’s development history has provided for compact urban development.  Working 
under the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Ordinances, the City will work with the 
landowner to develop a plan for the petition area.  Developing a detailed plan for the area 
before annexation leaves uncertainty of whether an annexation would be approved in the 
future. 


 Upon annexation, we anticipate the petition area will continue to be used for agricultural 
purposes until development occurs. 


 The City has a full-time Director of Planning & Development and a full-time Assistant 
Planner/Zoning Administrator.  The City utilizes local zoning and subdivision regulations 
for properties within the City as a tool to implement the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  


 We anticipate a new ward will be created for the petition area. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


Please let me know if you have any follow up questions. 


 


Sincerely, 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


Rodney Scheel 
 
Rodney Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 


 







      


 


 


 


TONY EVERS 
 


  


  


GOVERNOR 
 


  


  


JOEL BRENNAN 
 


  


  


SECRETARY 
 


  


  


Municipal Boundary Review 
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701 
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104 
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview 


 


 


     


      


      


 September 10, 2019  PETITION FILE NO. 14248 


         


 HOLLY LICHT, CLERK 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


207 S FORREST ST 


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1724 


 CATHY HASSLINGER, CLERK 


TOWN OF DUNN 


4156 COUNTY RD B 


MC FARLAND, WI 53558-9754 


         


 Subject: DVORAK INVESTMENTS ANNEXATION 


 


The proposed annexation submitted to our office on August 20, 2019, has been reviewed and found to be in 


the public interest.   


 


This petition is an amendment to an earlier proposal – MBR #14218 – which was found to be Against the 


Public Interest because it would have created a town island contrary to Wisconsin statutes.  Additionally, 


the Department was unclear whether services could be provided to the area. 


 


In determining whether an annexation is in the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the 


Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with 


the annexing village or city…." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The 


statute also requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide municipal 


services to the territory, or whether a neighboring community could better provide needed and requested 


services 


 


The amended petition is for territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguous to the City of Stoughton.  


The amended petition corrects the prior town island problem by excluding territory to the east and north to 


connect the former island parcel to the rest of the Town.   


 


Regarding services, the City has provided information from its comprehensive plan which anticipates that 


this annexation territory will ultimately become part of the City’s Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area.  


Some requested City services will be available immediately.  Others, such as sewer and water service, will 


require more time.  For example, an Urban Service Amendment is needed to extend sewer and water 


infrastructure, which the City estimates could take 5 years or more.  Clearly no other neighboring 


community could better provide the requested services to the territory. 


 


The Town again points out that the land use changes motivating this annexation, and the City’s designating 


this area as its Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area, run directly counter to the Town’s comprehensive plan 


which designates this territory as Agricultural Preservation Area.  The two Communities’ comprehensive 


plans lay bare their divergent future land use visions for this area.  However, both Communities 


comprehensive plans are consistent in that both plans recommend creating an intergovernmental boundary 


 







agreement, preserving farmland, promoting compact and orderly development, and implementing joint 


planning to “keep issues calm and outcomes predictable and mutually beneficial”1.  Developing a boundary 


agreement could successfully resolve the Communities’ shared land use and service issues.  The Town 


already has an existing boundary agreement with the Village of McFarland, which could serve as impetus 


and precedent. 


 


The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. 


Stats., which states: 


 


"The clerk of a city or village which has annexed shall file immediately with the secretary of 


administration a certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each 


company that provides any utility service in the area that is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance 


with the register of deeds and file a signed copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school 


district..." 


 


State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through 


failure to file with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, 


including a statement certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR 


number 14248 with your ordinance. Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on 


"Help on How to Submit Municipal Records". Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps 


with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary 


Review, PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701-1645. 


 


The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2322 


Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review. 


         


 Sincerely, 


 


 


 Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review  cc: petitioner 
 


 


                                                           
1 City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan (2017), page 154 



http://mds.wi.gov/

mailto:mds@wi.gov

http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2322





Annexation Review 
Questionnaire 


Wisconsin Department of Administration 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


WI Dept. of Administration 


Municipal Boundary Review 


101 E. Wilson Street, 9th Floor 


Madison WI 53703 


608-264-6102    Fax: 608-264-6104 


wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 


http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview/ 


 


Petitioner: 


Dvorak Investments II, LLC 


Petition Number: 


14248 


1.  Territory to be annexed: From Town of: Dunn To City/Village of: City of Stoughton 


2.  Area (Acres): 51.315  


3. Pick one: Property Tax Payments     OR   Boundary Agreement 


a. Annual town property tax on territory to be annexed: $51 


b. Total that will be paid to Town 


(annual tax multiplied by 5 years): 257 


c. Paid by:     Petitioner     City      Village 


                      Other:       


a. Title of boundary agreement       


b. Year adopted      


c. Participating jurisdictions       


d. Statutory authority (pick one)   


    s. 66.0307          s. 66.0225          s. 66.0301 


4. Resident Population:     Electors: 0     Total: 0 


5.  Approximate present land use of territory: 


 Residential:     % Recreational:     % Commercial:     % Industrial:     % 


 Undeveloped: 100% 


6.  If territory is undeveloped, what is the anticipated use? 


 


 Residential: 35% Recreational: 15% Commercial: 40% Industrial: 5% 


 Other: 5% 


 


     Comments: The City's Comprehensive Plan includes the annexation area in our Future Land Use Map as part of 


our Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area. 


7.  Has a preliminary  or  final plat been submitted to the Plan Commission: Yes    No 


     Plat Name:       


8.  What is the nature of land use adjacent to this territory in the city or village? Agriculture 


 


     In the town?: Agriculture 


9.  What are the basic service needs that precipitated the request for annexation? 


 


 Sanitary sewer  Water supply  Storm sewers 


 Police/Fire protection  EMS   Zoning 


 Other:       



mailto:wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov

http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview/

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.0307

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.0225

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.0301





 


10.  Is the city/village or town capable of providing needed utility services? 


 City/Village Yes   No.   Town Yes   No 


 


 If yes, approximate time table for providing service: City/Village Town 


 Sanitary Sewers immediately   


 or, write in number of years. 5+       


 


 Water Supply immediately,   


 or, write in number of years. 5+       


 


Will provision of sanitary sewers and/or water supply to the territory proposed for annexation require capital 
expenditures (i.e. treatment plant expansion, new lift stations, interceptor sewers, wells, water storage facilities)?      


Yes   No. 


If yes, identify the nature of the anticipated improvements and their probable costs: Sanitary Sewer & water 


infrastructure will need to be extended to this area.  Once development plans area submitted and as part of 


the Urban Service Amendment process, the City will evaluate the scope of these improvements along with the 


timing and funding mechanisms available. 


11.  Planning: 


 1. Do you have a comprehensive plan for the City/Village/Town? Yes     No 


     Is this annexation consistent with your comprehensive plan?  Yes     No 


     Describe: The petition area is located within the City’s Comprehensive Plan to accommodate urban development as 


part the City of Stoughton.  Our Future Land Use Map depicts this area as part of the Northwest Planned Mixed Use 


Area 


 


 2. Annual appropriation for planning?  $       


 


 3. How is the annexation territory now zoned? County Zoning - A-1(Ex) 


 


 4. How will the land be zoned and used if annexed? Under City Zoning, Planned Mixed Use which can include: Planned 


Business, Institutional, Planned Office, Planned Industrial and Multifamily. 


12.  Other relevant information and comments bearing upon the public interest in the annexation: 


      


 Prepared by: Town   City   Village Please RETURN PROMPTLY to: 


wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 


 


Municipal Boundary Review 


PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701 


 


Fax: (608) 264-6104 


 Name: Rodney Scheel 


 Email: rjscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 Phone: 608-873-6619 


 Date: 8-22-2019 


(April 2013) 



mailto:wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov





!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! !


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!!!!!
!


!


!!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!!!


!!!!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!!!!!


!


!!


!
!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!!!!!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!!!


!
!


!!!!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! ! !


! ! !


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


! !


!


!
! !


!
!


!
!


! ! !
!


!
!


!


! !


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!


!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!!


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!!


!


!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! !


!


!
!


!


!!


!
!


! ! !


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!!!!


!


!


!!!!!


!!!
!!!


!
!


!
!


!!!!


!


!!


!


!!


!
!


!!


!
!


!


!
!


!!!!!


!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!


!!


!!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!
!!


!
!


! !


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! !


!
!


!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


N Page St


Skyline Dr


Lincoln Ave


Jackson St


Johnson St


E Main St


N Van Buren St


Greig Tr


King St


Kings Lynn Rd


East St


Aaker Rd


Veterans
Rd


S Fourth St


Lin
ne


rud
 Dr


Dunkirk Ave


W Milwaukee St


Moline St


Nygaard St


W Wilson St


Kriedeman Dr


West St


Sundt Ln


Hamilton St


Country Club Rd


Hilldale Ln


Buckingham Rd


Hyland Dr


S Academy St


S Van Buren St


Chapin Ln


Furseth Rd


Felland St


Berry St


Nottingham


Rd


Eisenhower Rd


Pleasant View Dr


North St


Indu s tri al Cir


Lowell St


Virgin Lake Dr


Ridge St


SLyn n St


Riverside Dr


W Jefferson St


Commerce Rd


N Div
isio


n St


Larvik Ln


Mel lu m Dr


W Taft St Amundson Pkwy


Aspen Rd


E Academy St


Smedal Dr


Holtan Rd


Mandt Pkwy


Roosevelt St


Ho
el 


Av
e


Carl Ave


W Prospect St


Westchester Cir


E Jefferson St


Velkommen Way


Nora St


Barberry Rd
Business Par k


Ci
r


S Water St


E Milwaukee St


Riverview Dr


Paradise Dr


Silverado Dr


Grant St


Meadow Dr


N Morris St


Quinn Ln


E South St


Chalet Dr


Hill St


Park St


Garden Ave


Church St


Kvam m
eL


n


Giles St


Sa
wy


er
Rd


Eighth St


N Monroe St


Ha
nso


n Rd


E Washington St


Ha
rve


st L
n


Deer Point Dr


N Prairie St


Ap


ollo Cir


Matthew Way


W Broadway St


Garfield St
Coopers Cswy


Patterson St


Dv
ora


k Ct Ashberry Ln


Brickson St


S Page St


Kensington Sq


Clancey Ln


Vernon St


E South St


W Main St


N Madison St


Hyland Dr


Isham St


W South St


¬«138


")N


£¤51 ¬«138 £¤51


¬«138


")N


")A


")A


Roby Rd


Lincoln Ave


")B
")B


Williams Dr


N 
Pa


ge
 St


W Main St


W Main St


Jo
hn


so
n S


t


Su
nd


t L
n


Kin
gs


Lyn
n R


d


Lunde Cir


Rutland-Dunn Townline Rd


£¤51


£¤51


D e
vo


ns
hir


eR
d


Hoel Ave


Valberg Dr


Nordland Dr


Markens Gate Rd


Korgen Dr


Harding St


Sto
ne


y Ri d ge T
r


S F
ou


rth
St


N Van Buren St


Yahara River


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
6a


Future Land Use


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.


Eastside
Planned


Neighborhood


Southwest
Planned


Neighborhood


Northwest
Planned


Mixed Use Area


South
Planned


Neighborhood


Northside
Planned 


Neighborhood


0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles


** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.


Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural/Vacant
Unsewered Residential
Single Family Residential
Two Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office
Neighborhood Office
Planned Business
Neighborhood Business
Planned Industrial


Right-of-Way
Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial
Heavy Industrial
Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*
Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood
Central Business


Westside
Planned


Mixed Use Corridor


Railroads


Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**


! !


Northwest
Planned


Neighborhood


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1 2
3


4
5
6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
345


6
7


*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.


Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.


2017 Municipal Boundaries
2017 Limited Service Areas
2017 Urban Service Areas


Planned Mixed Use


Adopted: July 11, 2017


Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board



















T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes  10-14-19.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, October 14, 2019 at 6:00 pm 
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI. 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Thomas Majewski; 
Tom Robinson; Tom Selsor; and Brett Schumacher 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development 
Press: None 
Guests: Mary Wandtke; John Brigham; Bob Dvorak; Darren Marabelli; Dennis Steinkraus; Jim 
Bricker 
 
1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of September 9, 2019. 


Motion by Schumacher to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 7 
- 0. 
 


3. Council Representative Report.  Caravello stated all items from the Plan Commission were 
approved by Council. 


 
4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet.   
 
5. Request by Mary Wandtke for final condominium plat approval of the Good View 


Condominium, 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive. 
Scheel explained the request. 


  
Motion by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the final plat for the Good 
View Condominium, 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   
 
Motion carried 7 - 0. 


 
6. Request by Dvorak Investments II, LLC for direct annexation of 51.315 acres of land along 


the west side of US Highway 51 north near County Highway B, from the Town of Dunn. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Majewski indicated he has some concerns such as other lands recently annexed by Dvorak are not 
being developed yet; large amount of land annexed that has not been developed yet and if it all 
gets developed at the same time city services may not be able to keep up; the annexation is 
premature and the land will sit fallow. 
 
Mr. Dvorak indicated he is interested in being proactive with this annexation to evaluate the larger 
region for stormwater, sanitary sewer, water, and USH 51 Corridor Study.  The land is intended to 
remain as farmland until development occurs. 
 
Barman indicated that adjacent land use plans should be coordinated with the DOT during their 
Study process. 
 
The commission discussed the Town of Dunn’s opposition to the annexation. 



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
10/14/19 
Page 2 of 3 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes  10-14-19.docx 


 


 
Motion by Caravello to postpone action on the annexation request until the next meeting so the 
City can contact the Town about their concern regarding this annexation and how they see a 
boundary agreement impacting this request, 2nd by Majewski.    
 
Barman reinforced that this annexation request is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
 
Motion carried 7 – 0. 


 
7. Request by Dr. Daniel Tataje of Stoughton Family Dental for approval of a projecting sign 


at 101 W. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Barman made a suggestion that the applicant consider increasing the font size especially of the 
“Family Dental” text to make it more legible. 


 
Motion by Barman to approve the signage at 101 W. Main Street as presented, 2nd by  
Caravello.  
 
Motion carried 7 - 0. 


 
8. Introduce Preliminary Plat – The Meadows at Kettle Park West. 


Scheel explained the Preliminary Plat.  Jim Bricker provided background related to the 
development of the Preliminary Plat. 
 
Scheel explained that a Preliminary Plat needs to be acted on by the City Council within 90 days 
of submittal in order to meet Wis. Stats.  Scheel provided a potential calendar for consideration as 
follows: 
 


October 14, 2019 - Plan Commission – Introduce Preliminary Plat  
October 22, 2019 – Common Council – Introduce Preliminary Plat  
November 11, 2019 – Plan Commission – Hold Public Hearing on Preliminary Plat 
 Consider Action on Preliminary Plat 
December 9 2019 – Plan Commission – Action on Preliminary Plat (unless action was taken on 


November 11, 2019) 
January 14, 2020 – Common Council - Action on Preliminary Plat 


  (Note: This possible schedule will require an extension by the Developer to exceed the 
90-day limit.) 


 
Steinkraus indicated they are willing to grant a reasonable extension.   


 
9. The Meadows at Kettle Park West – Discuss Planned Development Standards for small lot 


single-family detached district. 
 
Scheel and Bricker discussed potential zoning standards for the small lot single-family detached 
portions of the Preliminary Plat.  The items discussed included: 



mstacey

Highlight







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2019\Planning Minutes  11-11-19.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 11, 2019 at 6:00 pm 
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI. 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Thomas Majewski; 
Tom Robinson; Tom Selsor; and Brett Schumacher 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Jeff Davis; Chuck Davis; Brad Anderson; Katie Sappey; Emily Bahr; Scott Foley; Natalie 
Richter; Chris Overson; Bob Dvorak; Dennis Steinkraus; Jim Bricker; and Brittany Rusch. 
 
1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of October 14, 2019. 


Motion by Schumacher to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 7 
- 0. 
 


3. Council Representative Report.  Caravello reported the Good View Condominium Final Plat 
was approved and the Preliminary Plat Concept for The Meadows at Kettle Park West was 
discussed including Kettle Park West Phase 2 TIF. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 
Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet.  There 
were no questions. 


 
5. Request by Dvorak Investments II, LLC for direct annexation of 51.315 acres of land along 


the west side of US Highway 51 north near County Highway B, from the Town of Dunn. 
(Tabled on October 14, 2019) 
Scheel explained the request and provided information about the meeting with the Town of Dunn 
that he and Mayor Swadley had. 


 
Mayor Swadley gave an overview of the meeting with the Town of Dunn. 
 
Caravello asked if a boundary agreement was discussed.  Scheel stated it seemed there was a 
general acknowledgement that natural environmental corridors exist that will limit development to 
the north and west. 
 
Schumacher questioned if the home in the middle of the annexation area would become part of the 
future development or would be removed when a roundabout is installed at Hwy 51 and County 
Road B.  Scheel stated the roundabout is not planned to remove the farmstead.  At this time, it is 
not known whether the dwelling would be removed as part of a development plan. 
 
Caravello stated the Dept. of Administration (DOA) recommends the City work with the Town of 
Dunn on a boundary agreement.  Mayor Swadley stated that is something we could look at in the 
future but does not appear to be necessary now and the DOA includes that statement as a standard 
in their letters. 
 
Majewski asked if the City worked with the Town so the Comprehensive Plan did not conflict.  
Scheel stated all the Towns were included in the Comprehensive Planning process. The City 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
11/11/19 
Page 2 of 5 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2019\Planning Minutes  11-11-19.docx 


 


focuses on the 1.5-mile extra-territorial jurisdiction from the current City borders and it is not 
uncommon for city and town plans to disagree in this overlap planning area.  Scheel stated the 
annexation area is within the 1.5-mile jurisdiction of the City and in the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan for City development. 


 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the annexation as 
presented, 2nd by Barman.   
 
Caravello would like the City to focus on areas where there is approved urban service area.  
Majewski and Schumacher agree with Caravello. 
 
Schumacher will support this annexation because he believes it is an important area for the City to 
have control of since it is the entry to the City. 
 
Mayor Swadley supports the annexation because it allows the City to better plan for future 
development of that area. 
 
Motion carried 5 – 2 (Majewski and Caravello voted no) 


 
6. Request by Natalie Richter for a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow group daycare and 


nursery school uses and site plan approval to construct a new building at 1940 Jackson 
Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Scott Foley of Ultimate Construction explained the existing building is planned to be removed and 
the existing foundation will be altered for the new building. 
 
Brittany Rusch, Pumpkin Patch Board President summarized the Pumpkin Patch operation. 
 
Schumacher questioned the need to remove the existing building.  Scott Foley stated the cost to 
remodel exceeds the cost to replace; the building has mold and is in very poor condition. 
 
Majewski asked why they don’t rent from the Stoughton Schools.  Brittany Rusch stated they do 
not need that much room. 
 
Majewski is concerned about the number of children (60) being dropped off and the traffic it will 
generate.  Brittany Rusch stated children are dropped off at different times during the day and at 
least 10 children are bused in. 
 
Barman asked if they knew of the history of the building.  Scott Foley stated the building was built 
in the 90’s and is pretty rough inside.  Natalie Richter, Pumpkin Patch School Director stated the 
building is not the right size for the number of children they intent to have. 
 
Selsor stated he owns the adjacent 4-unit residential building to the east and lives within 
Kensington Square so he plans to abstain from voting on this project.  Selsor stated some adjacent 



mstacey

Highlight





		11a-O-26-2019 Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation of a Portion of the Town of Dunn

		Dvorak Annexation

		ADPEE2F.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, October 14, 2019 at 6:00 pm Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI.



		ADPBB46.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, November 11, 2019 at 6:00 pm Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI.














 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement to continue 


participation in the Madison Area Municipal Storm Water Partnership (MAMSWaP) 


  
 


Committee Action: 


 


Finance Committee meets December 10, 2019 
 
 


Fiscal Impact: 


 


$ 28,800 over five years – Stormwater Utility Funds 


 
File Number: 


 
R-190-2019 


 
Date Introduced 


 
December 10, 2019 


  
WHEREAS the City operates under a Stormwater Discharge Permit (WPDES) issued by the DNR; and 


WHEREAS the City is required to provide information, education, and outreach related to stormwater 
management practices and the City's permit; and 


WHEREAS multiple municipalities in Dane County have previously worked together and jointly funded 


this effort; and 


WHEREAS Stoughton has cost-effectively participated in this organization since 2009; and 


WHEREAS the Finance Committee met on December 10, 2019, to consider entering into this five-year 
agreement and recommends approval; now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper City official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the MAMSWaP group 


to provide information, education, and outreach related to the City's WPDES Stormwater Discharge 


Permit. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-- 2019 Resolution MAMSWaP Agreement.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  November 27, 2019 


 


To:  Finance Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Finance Committee Agenda Item – Madison Area Storm Water Partnership 


(MAMSWaP) Agreement  


 


The Madison Area Storm Water Partnership (MAMSWaP) was created to jointly apply for a 


storm water discharge permit under NR 216 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code.  This group 


continues to work cooperatively on our stormwater information, education and outreach to 


address one of the required elements of our permit.  Stoughton has actively participated in this 


organization since 2009.  This five-year agreement will replace the expiring five-year agreement. 


 


The agreement is recommended for approval with funding through our stormwater utility. 


 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    


     


 
    


 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance Committee 11-27-19 - MAMSWaP Agreement.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO FUND A POSITION RESPONSIBLE FOR 
STORM WATER INFORMATION, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH COORDINATION 


FOR THE MADISON AREA MUNICIPAL STORM WATER PARTNERSHIP (MAMSWaP) 
 
THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, hereinafter referred to as this “Agreement,” 
made and entered into by, between and among the Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, 
Middleton, Monona, Stoughton, Sun Prairie and Verona; the Villages of Cottage Grove, 
Cross Plains, DeForest, Maple Bluff, McFarland, Shorewood Hills, Waunakee and 
Windsor; the Towns of Blooming Grove, Burke, Madison, Middleton and Westport; Dane 
County; and the University of Wisconsin–Madison, hereinafter referred to individually as 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties,” which will include other municipalities that may join 
after this Agreement has been signed by the Parties listed. 
 


WITNESSETH: 
 


WHEREAS, many of the Parties entered into a Cooperative Agreement to jointly apply for 
a storm water discharge permit, hereinafter referred to as the “Permit”, under Chapter NR 
216 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code in April, 2000; and  
 
WHEREAS, this group intends to work cooperatively on storm water information, education 
and outreach, notwithstanding the fact that there may not be a continuing group Permit; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, one of the required work elements of each Party’s NR 216 permit is the 
operation of an information, education and outreach program; and 
 
WHEREAS, many of the Parties previously signed an agreement to jointly develop, 
coordinate and implement an information, education and outreach program from May 2004 
through April 2009 and May 2009 through December 2013 and January 2014 through 
December 2018 (extended to December 2019); and 
 
WHEREAS, the materials and products that result from this joint effort are expressly 
developed for the Parties to partially fulfill their information and education permit 
obligations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties agree, pursuant to sec. 66.0301, and Ch. 36, Wis. Stats. to obtain 
the services of a sixty percent employee of Dane County to provide information, education 
and outreach services to partially meet the requirements and components of each Party’s 
NR 216 Stormwater Discharge Permit as detailed in the Madison Area Municipal Storm 
Water Partnership 2020-2024 Storm Water Information, Education and Outreach Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and the covenants of the 
Parties hereinafter set forth, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged 
by each Party for itself, the Parties agree to the following: 
 
  1. Dane County shall maintain a 60% position (1,248 hours annually or as many hours 


as funding allows), hereinafter referred to as the “Position,” in its Land & Water 
Resources Department’s (LWRD) and limited term employees to provide 
information, education and outreach services in furtherance of the storm water 







 2 


management programs conducted under each Party’s permit. If any party fails to 
make their respective contribution by the due date as required by Exhibit A, the 
Party may be suspended from receiving services under this agreement and may be 
subjected to a breach of contract claim by Dane County or any other Party.  
 
The Position shall be funded by the Parties as set forth in Exhibit A. Fees are based 
on 2010 Census population data. When a municipality wishes to join the 
information, education and outreach plan effort, it shall pay the amount set forth in 
Exhibit A based on its population from 2010 Census data. If a municipality joins mid-
year, its amount will not be prorated. Additional municipalities’ contributions shall 
not lessen the amount of the Parties’ contributions set forth in Exhibit A, but shall be 
utilized for salary, benefits, and programmatic expenses directly related to the 
MAMSWaP. The municipality wishing to join the effort shall sign onto this 
Agreement and be afforded the benefits of the information, education and outreach 
program that are made available to all Parties. 


 
Dane County shall provide annual documentation of direct and indirect expenses 
incurred with staffing the I&E position. Costs would include direct salary and 
benefits of staff and supervisors as well as indirect costs such as work space and 
support. This report for prior year shall be presented to agreement signatories on or 
before March 31 annually.  
 
Should the Position become vacant, Dane County shall take all reasonable 
measures to assure that it is filled or its duties reassigned. During the time the 
Position is vacant, the LWRD Water Resource Engineering Division Manager shall 
assign other equivalent staff to complete the duties of the Position and shall notify 
all Parties in writing. 


 
  2. The Parties shall continue to operate and maintain the Information and Education 


Committee, hereinafter referred to as I&E Committee, previously created under the 
Madison Area Municipal Storm Water Partnership. The I&E Committee shall provide 
guidance and oversight to the Position, which is directly supervised by the LWRD 
Water Resource Engineering Division Manager. The five-year outreach plan 
developed by the I&E Committee will direct the Position’s activities. 


 
 The materials and products that result from this joint effort are expressly developed 


for the Parties to partially fulfill their Information and Education permit obligations. 
 


The I&E Committee shall meet a minimum of four (4) times per year. The I&E 
Committee shall consist of representatives of the Parties to this Agreement. The 
Position shall staff the I&E Committee. There is no maximum number of members 
for the I&E Committee. Any representative of a Party to this Agreement may be a 
member of the I&E Committee. At a minimum, the I&E Committee shall be 
comprised of one representative from Dane County, one representative from UW-
Madison, one representative from City of Madison, one representative from 
remaining Party cities, one representative from villages, and one representative 
from towns (for a total of six (6)). The I&E Committee shall continue to solicit the 
advice and consultation of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and the 
University of Wisconsin Cooperative Extension.  







 3 


 
  3. The entire agreement of the Parties is contained herein and this Agreement 


supersedes any and all oral agreements and negotiations between the Parties 
relating to the subject matter hereof. The Parties expressly agree that this 
Agreement shall not be amended in any fashion except in writing, executed by all 
Parties.  


 
  4. Upon execution by all Parties, this Agreement shall become effective, superseding 


the previous agreement that was in place through December 2018, and shall end 
December 31, 2024 unless the Parties agree to a longer period. This Agreement 
may be amended and extended at any time upon the mutual agreement of all of the 
Parties.  


 
  5 Dane County shall invoice each of the Parties the amount set forth in Exhibit A 


commencing January 1, 2020 and every January 1 for years 2021, 2022, 2023 and 
2024. Invoices are payable in 30 days.  


 
  6. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 


In the event that any Party determines that it is in its best interest to terminate 
participation in this cooperative agreement with Dane County and all other Parties 
to this Agreement for storm water information, education and outreach, the Party 
may do so at any time by taking the following action: 


 
A)  The Party shall send written correspondence to the Dane County 


LWRD Water Resource Engineering Division Manager and the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources indicating its desire to 
terminate participation in this Agreement.  


 
 This correspondence shall include an official resolution or documented 


action indicating that the requested termination has been authorized 
by a governmental body possessing the legal authority required to 
terminate this Agreement, and that the signatories to this 
correspondence are duly authorized to sign a correspondence 
terminating their participation in this Agreement. 


 
B) Upon receipt of this correspondence, the Dane County LWRD Water 


Resource Engineering Division Manager shall deem the requesting 
party removed from the information and education joint agreement at 
the end of the year in which the request is made. 


 
  7. In the event that a Party withdraws and terminates its participation in this 


Agreement, the withdrawing Party shall be responsible for its financial contribution 
with regard to this Agreement until December 31 of the year the Party withdraws. 
No partial refund based on the date of withdrawal by the Party shall be given. 


 
When a withdrawing Party is no longer financially responsible under this paragraph, 
the cost shall be re-apportioned among the remaining Parties based upon each 
Party’s respective proportional contribution as set forth in Exhibit A if the termination 
results in the funding contribution total to be less than $25,000 for programmatic 







 4 


expenses plus the amount needed to fund the Position’s salary and benefits for the 
year following the time of termination. 


 
  8. NON DISCRIMINATION 


In performance of services under this Agreement, the parties agree not to 
discriminate against any employee or applicant because of race, religion, marital 
status, age, color, sex, handicap, national origin or ancestry, income level or source 
of income, arrest record or conviction record, less than honorable discharge, 
physical appearance, sexual orientation, political beliefs, or student status. 


 
  9. PERFORMANCE 


Each Party to this Agreement hereby certifies that it possesses the legal authority 
required to enter into this Agreement, and that the signatories to this Agreement are 
duly authorized to sign and that its designated representatives are authorized to act 
in matters pertaining to this Agreement and to provide required reports and file data 
as may be required. 


 
10. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS 


This agreement is intended to be solely between the parties hereto. No part of this 
Agreement shall be construed to add, supplement, amend, or repeal existing rights, 
benefits or privileges of any third party or parties. Nothing contained herein is 
intended as a waiver by any party of the defenses and immunities contained within 
the Wisconsin Statutes, including Sec. 893.80. 


 
11. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPART 


Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges that this Agreement may be executed 
in counterparts by duly authorized signatories and that the final contract and the 
cumulative counterpart signature pages shall be considered an original document 
with the full force and effect as if one copy of the contract was circulated to all 
parties for signature. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, Middleton, Monona, 
Stoughton, Sun Prairie and Verona; the Villages of Cottage Grove, Cross Plains, 
DeForest, Maple Bluff, McFarland, Shorewood Hills, Waunakee and Windsor; the Towns 
of Blooming Grove, Burke, Madison, Middleton, and Westport; Dane County; and the 
University of Wisconsin–Madison, hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their proper officers. 
 
 







 5 


EXHIBIT A 
FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARD POSITIONS RESPONSIBLE FOR 


STORM WATER INFORMATION, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH 
 


The contributions per Party listed below for 2020 assume a 60% (1,248 hours annually) 
annual salary and benefits package of approximately $50,000 based on the 2019  rate of 
pay for the Position, a 50% LTE (1,040 hours annually) annual salary of approximately 
$25,000 and a base annual programmatic budget of $25,000 for information, education 
and outreach materials and supplies. Any funds received that are not used for salary and 
benefits package will be carried forward and available for programmatic expenses in the 
following year. 
 
The Salary and Benefits paid for the positions  in the 2nd and subsequent years shall be 
based upon a 5% annual increase as shown in the following example (rounded to next 
highest dollar): year one (1) contribution $1000, year two (2) $1000 + $1000*(0.05) = 
$1050.00, year three (3) = $1050 + $1050*(0.05) = $1103.  
 
The programmatic budget for implementing the information and education plan is $25,000 
annually. The programmatic budget shall be increased at 5% per year using the same 
process described above for the Salary and Benefits portion of this EXHIBIT A. 
 
Billing invoice amounts reflecting salary and benefits and programmatic funds shall be 
reviewed by the I&E Committee. If the accumulated programmatic balance exceeds 
$25,000 in any given year, the I&E Committee has discretion to credit member 
municipalities with written notice sent to all Parties in the Agreement. 
 
Additional increases to the Position salary (in the case of a reclassification of Position 
incumbent) or programmatic budgets are allowed provided the budget amendment is 
approved by the I&E Committee and written notice sent to all Parties in this Agreement.  
 
Any proposed changes shall be sent by July 1 of the year preceding the proposed change 
so that municipalities have adequate time to budget for the additional costs. Additional 
costs shall be apportioned among the Parties based upon their respective proportional 
contribution as set forth herein. 
 
The Position shall pursue grant opportunities wherever possible to supplement the 
programmatic budget and shall be responsible for submittal of those grant requests on 
behalf of the Parties to this Agreement. 
 


MUNICIPALITY 2010 Population 
January-December 2020 


Fee 
Category 


Dane County*, ** N/A NA  
UW-Madison* N/A $4,184  5 
City of Madison 233,209 $16,742  1 
City of Sun Prairie 29,364 $9,366  2 
City of Fitchburg 25,260 $9,366  2 
City of Middleton 17,442 $6,278  3 
City of Stoughton 12,611 $5,212  4 
Village of Waunakee 12,097 $5,212  4 
City of Verona 10,619 $5,212  4 







 6 


Village of DeForest 8,936 $4,184  5 
City of Monona 7,533 $4,184  5 
Village of McFarland 7,808 $4,184  5 
Town of Windsor 6,345 $4,184  5 
Town of Madison 6,279 $4,184  5 
Village of Cottage Grove 6,192 $4,185  5 
Town of Middleton 5,877 $4,185  5 
Village of Westport 3,950 $2,093  6 
Village of Cross Plains  3,538 $2,093  6 
Town of Burke 3,284 $2,093  6 
Town of Blooming Grove 1,815 $2,093  6 
Village of Shorewood Hills 1,565 $2,093  6 
Village of Maple Bluff 1,313 $2,093  6 
TOTAL  $103,421  
* Contribution not based on population. 
** The Parties agree that Dane County does not invoice itself, but rather contributes in-kind with office space; phone, 
computer, printer and other equipment; internet access; Information Management and other staff support; access to 
vehicles; supervision; and other overhead.  


MUNICIPALITY 2020 
Contribution 


2021 
Contribution 


2022 
Contribution 


2023 
Contribution 


2024 
Contribution 


Cate-
gory 


2010 
popul-
ation 


Dane County NA NA NA NA NA 5 N/A 
UW-Madison $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 N/A 
City of Madison $16,742  $17,579  $18,458  $19,381  $20,350  1 233,209 
City of Sun Prairie $9,366  $9,834  $10,326  $10,842  $11,384  2 29,364 
City of Fitchburg $9,366  $9,834  $10,326  $10,842  $11,384  2 25,260 
City of Middleton $6,278  $6,592  $6,921  $7,268  $7,631  3 17,442 
City of Stoughton $5,212  $5,473  $5,746  $6,034  $6,335  4 12,611 
Village of 
Waunakee $5,212  $5,473  $5,746  $6,034  $6,335  4 12,097 


City of Verona $5,212  $5,473  $5,746  $6,034  $6,335  4 10,619 
Village of 
DeForest $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 8,936 


City of Monona $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 7,533 
Village of 
McFarland $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 7,808 


Town of Windsor $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 6,345 
Town of Madison $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 6,279 
Village of Cottage 
Grove $4,185  $4,395  $4,614  $4,845  $5,087  5 6,192 


Town of Middleton $4,185  $4,395  $4,614  $4,845  $5,087  5 5,877 
Town of Westport $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 3,950 
Village of Cross 
Plains $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 3,538 


Town of Burke $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 3,284 
Town of Blooming 
Grove $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 1,815 


Village of 
Shorewood Hills $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 1,565 


Village of Maple 
Bluff $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 1,313 


Total: $103,421  $108,592  $114,021  $119,723  $125,709      







 7 


Category 2010 Census 
Population 


1 >50,000 
2 20,000-49,999 
3 15,000-19,999 
4 10,000-14,999 
5 5,000-9,999 
6 <5,000 
  
 
 







 12 


FOR THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 


__________________________________________  __________________________ 
Tim Swadley, Mayor      Date 
 


 


__________________________________________  __________________________ 
Holly Licht, City Clerk      Date 
 


  







 


MADISON AREA MUNICIPAL STORMWATER PARTNERSHIP  
2020 ANNUAL INFORMATION AND EDUCATION WORK PLAN  


DISTRIBUTED TO PARTNERSHIP MEMBERS ON NOVEMBER 26TH, 2019 
 
The Madison Area Municipal Stormwater Partnership (MAMSWaP), under the auspices of a 
five-year memorandum of understanding through 2024, currently consists of 22 entities that have 
agreed to jointly implement stormwater outreach to reduce negative stormwater impacts. 
Members include the Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, Monona, Middleton, Stoughton, Sun Prairie 
and Verona; the Villages of Cottage Grove, Cross Plains, DeForest, Maple Bluff, McFarland, 
Shorewood Hills, Waunakee and Windsor; the Towns of Burke, Blooming Grove, Madison, 
Middleton, Westport; Dane County and the University of Wisconsin–Madison.  
 
The MAMSWaP Information and Education (I&E) Committee assists the Dane County 
Stormwater Education Coordinator (SWEC) with development and implementation of projects 
and plans. Regular participation on the I&E Committee has included representatives from the 
Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, and Stoughton, Village of DeForest, Town of Westport, Dane 
County, Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (WDNR), AECOM,  the University of Wisconsin Extension and UW Madison.  
 
The MAMSWaP Annual I&E Work Plan seeks to meet or exceed the minimum requirements 
and elements outlined in the current WPDES Permit Number WI-S058416-4 (effective July 
1, 2019 – June 30, 2024 and continuing until permit re-issuance);  and, WPDES Permit 
Number WI-S050075-03 for the Village of Cross Plains, by developing and implementing a 
coordinated, regional outreach effort using consistent messages among and between 
communities to reduce the quantity and improve the quality of urban stormwater runoff 
and identify and eliminate illicit discharges. Numbered items are the specific elements from 
the permit language. Proposed programs and activities addressing the following required 
permit elements for 2020 are listed in Table 1.1. 
 
3.1.4.1  Promote detection and elimination of illicit discharges and water quality impacts 


associated with such discharges from municipal separate storm sewer systems.  
3.1.4.2 Inform and educate the public about the proper management of materials that may 


cause stormwater pollution from sources including: automobiles, pet waste, 
household hazardous waste and household practices. 


3.1.4.3 Promote beneficial onsite reuse of leaves and grass clippings and proper use of 
lawn and garden fertilizers and pesticides. 


3.1.4.4  Promote the management of streambanks and shorelines by riparian 
landowners to minimize erosion and restore and enhance the ecological 
value of waterways. 


3.1.4.5 Promote infiltration of residential stormwater runoff from rooftop downspouts, 
driveways and sidewalks. 


3.1.4.6 Inform and educate those responsible for the design, installation and maintenance 
of construction site erosion control practices and stormwater management 
facilities on how to design, install and maintain the practices. 







 


3.1.4.7 Identify businesses and activities that may pose a stormwater contamination 
concern and educate those specific audiences on methods of stormwater pollution 
prevention. 


3.1.4.8 Promote environmentally sensitive land development designs by developers and 
designers, including green infrastructure  and low impact development. 


 
Municipal Responsibilities 


It is not enough for municipalities to merely be an actively paying contributor to the 
Partnership. There are specific actions each municipality must do. For example, while 
MAMSWaP has created a useful website, each municipality needs to link to www.ripple-
effects.com. Other examples include: 


• using provided articles and other information in municipal newsletters or utility bill 
inserts, 


• promoting MAMSWaP campaigns, events and trainings, 
• providing information on municipal web sites, 
• issuing press releases to local newspapers, and 
• implementing storm drain marking programs. 


 
Municipalities must document in their reports to DNR how they have implemented outreach 
campaigns and used the materials developed by the I&E Committee. 
 
Additional Activities and Ongoing Tasks 
There are some administrative tasks and ongoing programs that must be performed every 
year that are essential to the program and need to be accounted for in the annual work plan. 
Following is a partial list of those tasks. 
1. Quarterly reporting to member municipalities 
2. Annual reporting to DNR. 
3. Billing municipalities and track payments. 
4. Developing annual work plans. 
5. Updating and maintaining the www.ripple-effects.com website. 
6. Continuing to be an active partner of WI Salt Wise 
7. Continuing to promote North American Stormwater and Erosion Control Association 


Wisconsin Chapter events. 
8. Developing and distributing outreach tools and articles to municipalities, friends 


groups, community groups and neighborhood association newsletters. 
9. Developing and providing presentations (PowerPoint, demonstrations, etc.) 


focused on audience interests/concerns. 
10. Continuing to maintain and use existing list serves and distribution lists to disseminate info. 
11. Continuing to provide organizations and community groups assistance and 


partnering with projects (presentations, displays etc. for communities). 
12. Continuing to promote and support storm drain marking programs with supplies and 


other materials. 
13. Promoting the stormwater curriculum developed for MAMSWaP. 
14. Publicizing training for building inspectors, contractors and staff. 
15. Publicizing the availability of the Dane County Erosion Control and Stormwater 



http://www.myfairlakes.com/

http://www.myfairlakes.com/

http://www.ripple-effects.com/





 


Management Manual. 
16. Promoting use of the Enviroscape model and Rainfall Simulator. 
17. Continuing to coordinate outreach with partners such as the Rock River Stormwater Group, 


Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District and others. 
18. Continuing to actively participate in the Statewide Stormwater Collaborative group to learn 


from other stormwater groups across the state and discover possible projects to partner on. 
 
19. Continuing to actively participate in the Statewide Stormwater Collaborative group to learn 


from other stormwater groups across the state and discover possible projects to partner on. 
 
Acknowledgments   
The Madison Area Municipal Stormwater Partnership’s 2020 Annual Information and 
Education Work Plan was developed by the MAMSWaP I&E Committee. Committee 
member expertise, input and municipal cooperation was crucial for plan development and 
will continue to play an integral role in addressing stormwater runoff in Dane County. 
Thank you to everyone who helped. 
 
I&E Committee Members Contributing to the 2020 Annual I&E Work Plan  
 
Jeremy Balousek, Dane County Land and Water Resources Department 
Kelli Bialkowski, Village of DeForest 
Christal Campbell, Dane County Land and Water Resources Department 
Chris Egger, UW–Madison 
Rick Eilertson, AECOM 
Gail Epping Overholt- UW Arboretum 
Phil Gaebler, City of Madison 
Claudia Guy, City of Fitchburg 
Mindy Habecker, Dane County – UW Extension 
Kathy Lake, Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District 
Hannah Mohelnitzky, City of Madison 
Rodney Scheel, City of Stoughton 
Tom Wilson, Town of Westport 


For more information, visit www.ripple-effects.com or contact Christal Campbell at 608-
224-3746 or campbell.christal@countyofdane.com.   
 



http://www.ripple-effects.com/

mailto:or

mailto:campbell.christal@countyofdane.com





 
Table 1.1 – 2020 MAMSWaP Information and Education Programs and Activities 
 


Program/Activity Audience Responsible 
Parties/Partners 


Timing Actions/Deliverables Permit Topic(s) Addressed 


Storm Drain Mural 
Program 
 


Residential  
Educational 


SWEC, Dane Arts 
Mural Arts (DAMA), 
MAMSWaP 
Communities, Schools, 
Community Groups 


1. Nov 2019 
2. Dec 2019-Jan 2020 
3. Feb 2020 
4. Mar-Aug 2020 
5. Jun-Aug 2020 
6. Jun-Aug 2020 


1. Update and post Storm Drain Mural Grant on Ripple 
Effects web site 


2. Promote Storm Drain Mural Grants  
3. Rank and select up to 10 applications for new or 


repainted murals 
4. Work with municipalities, partner groups and DAMA to 


design and paint storm drain murals 
5. Provide partner groups with articles to promote new 


murals locally. 
6. Add new storm drain murals to Storm Drain Mural 


Project map 


1. Illicit Discharge Detection 
and Elimination 


Illicit Discharge Reporting 
Program 
  


Residential 
Public Sector 
Private Sector 


SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities 


1. Oct-Jan 2020 
2. Feb-Aug 2020 
3. Feb -May 2020  
4. April-May 2020 


1. Develop county-wide Illicit Discharge Ordinance 
2. Develop outreach campaign 
3. Develop single point of contact reporting system 


protocol 
4. Hold at least one Illicit Discharge training for public staff 


 


1. Illicit Discharge Detection 
and Elimination 


Stormwater 
Pollution/Prevention 
Education Tools (Rainfall 
Simulator, Enviroscape, 
Stormwater Curriculum , 
Stormwater Animation 
and Storm Drain Marking) 
 


Residential 
Educational 


SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities, Schools, 
Community Groups  


1. Jan-Dec 2020 
2. Jan-Dec 2020 
3. Jan-Dec 2020 


1. Promote stormwater ed. tools to partners, groups and 
educators. 


2. Use stormwater ed. tools in at least 5 presentations. 
3. Check out stormwater ed. tools to at least 5 


educators/groups. 


1. Illicit Discharge Detection 
and Elimination 


2. Household Hazardous 
Waste Disposal/Pet Waste 
Management/Vehicle 
Washing 


3. Yard Waste 
Management/Pesticide and 
Fertilizer Application 


4. Stream and Shoreline 
Management 


5. Residential Infiltration 
 


Leaf-free Streets for Clean 
Waters 
 


Residential 
Educational 
Private Sector 


SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities, 
Community Groups 


1. Sept 2020 
2. Oct-Nov 2020 
3. Oct-Nov 2020 


1. Update and distribute Leaf-free Streets for Clean 
Waters Toolkit to municipalities and groups 


2. Promote actions and rain alert system through 
social media, flyers, newsletter articles, signs, 


3. Yard Waste 
Management/Pesticide and 
Fertilizer Application 







 
presentations, newspaper and online advertising. 


3. Issue email/text rain alerts. 
Plant Dane Native Plant 
Program and  
Free Native Plants for 
School and Community 
Projects (FNPSCP) Program 
 


Residential 
Educational 
Private Sector 
 


SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities, Schools, 
Community Groups 


1. Dec 2019-Jan 2020 
2. Nov 2019 
3. Dec 2019-Jan 2020 
4. Feb 2020 
5. Feb-Mar 2020 
6. Feb-Mar 2020 
7. Feb-Mar 2020 
8. Feb-Mar 2020 
9. June 2020 


1. Work with Agrecol to update plant list and order 
system. 


2. Update and post FNPSCP  Grant Application 
3. Promote FNPSCP Grants 
4. Launch Plant Dane online order site  
5. Solicit and collect donations for at least 10 FNPSCPs 
6. Update and distribute Plant Dane Toolkit to 


municipalities and groups 
7. Hold rain garden workshop with at least 15 


participants. 
8. Sell at least 10,000 native plants through Plant 


Dane  
9. Distribute native plant orders/donations 


4. Stream and Shoreline 
Management 


5. Residential Infiltration 
7. Pollution Prevention 
8. Green Infrastructure/Low 


Impact Development 
 


NASECA Trainings 
 


Construction 
Professionals 
Public Sector 


SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities 


1. July-Nov 2020 
2. July-Nov 2020 


1. Promote NASECA Trainings 
2. Provide discounts to attend trainings for 


MAMSWaP communities 


6. Construction Sites and 
Post-Construction Storm 
Water Management 


WI Salt Wise Program and 
Salt Certification Trainings 
 


Residential 
Private Sector 
Public Sector 
 


SWEC, WI Salt Wise 
Partners, MAMSWaP 
Communities 


1. Jan-Mar 2020, 
Sept-Dec 2020 


2. Jan-Mar 2020, 
Sept-Dec 2020 


3. Oct-Dec 2020 
4. Oct-Nov 2020 
5. Oct-Nov 2020 


1. Participate on WI Salt Wise Team and attend 
meetings 


2. Collaborate with WI Salt Wise partners to promote, 
develop and distribute resources to reduce winter 
salt use. 


3. Update and distribute WI Salt Wise Toolkit to 
municipalities and groups. 


4. Hold at least two salt certification trainings with at 
least 20 participants. 


5. Hold at least one salt calibration training with at 
least 10 participants. 


2. Household Hazardous 
Waste Disposal/Pet Waste 
Management/Vehicle 
Washing 


7. Pollution Prevention 


Stormwater and Erosion 
Control Plan Review and  
Inspections 


Construction 
Professionals 
Residential 


MAMSWaP 
Communities 


1. Jan-Dec 2020 
2. Jan-Dec 2020 


1. Review erosion control and stormwater 
management plans 


2. Conduct inspections of erosion control and 
stormwater practices. 


6. Construction Sites and 
Post-Construction Storm 
Water Management 


 


 





		07a-R-- 2019 Resolution MAMSWaP Agreement

		07b-2020-2024 MAMSWaP Intergovernmental Agreement-Stoughton not executed package

		WITNESSETH:

		EXHIBIT A



		MUNICIPALITY

		Insert from: "2020 IE Workplan with Table.pdf"

		2020 MAMSWaP IE Workplan

		MADISON AREA MUNICIPAL STORMWATER PARTNERSHIP

		2020 ANNUAL INFORMATION AND EDUCATION WORK PLAN

		Distributed to Partnership Members on November 26th, 2019

		Additional Activities and Ongoing Tasks





		2020 IE Workplan Table







